
 

CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting 

 
City Councillor Joseph A. DelGrosso 

City Council Chamber – Revere City Hall 

281 Broadway, Revere, Massachusetts 02151 

Calendar 

Monday, December 12, 2022, 6:00 PM 

 
 

Salute to the Flag 

 

1.    Roll Call of Members 

2.   Approval of the Journal of the Regular Meeting of December 5, 2022 

Public Hearings 

3. 22-335 Hearing called as ordered on the application of Gerinaldo Nunez, 149 Cummins 

Highway, Roslindale, MA 02131 requesting a special permit from the Revere 

City Council with respect to no more than one principal nonresidential structure 

may be allowed on a single lot to enable the appellant to install a shipping 

container on the property for the temporary storage of parcels at 297 Lee Burbank 

Highway, Revere, MA 02151. 

4. 22-336 Hearing called as ordered on the application of Shirley Avenue, LLC, 163 Shirley 

Avenue, Revere, MA 02151 requesting a special permit from the Revere City 

Council to enable the appellant to raze the existing non-conforming structure and 

construct a brand new five (5) story mixed-use structure consisting of two (2) 

commercial units on the first floor and thirty-two (32) residential units on floors 

two (2) through five (5) at 163 Shirley Avenue, Revere, MA 02151. 

5. 22-337 Hearing called as ordered on a petition submitted by National Grid & Verizon to 

install two new jointly owned poles on Fernwood Ave. and 454 Broadway. In 

accordance with the plan on file (Plan# 30571975) 

6. 22-338 Hearing called as ordered on a petition submitted by National Grid to install 

underground electrical conduits from proposed new pole P899-2 on Fernwood 

Avenue, Revere, MA at Revere, MA in accordance with the plan on file. (Plan 

#30571975) 

7. 22-339 Hearing called as ordered on a petition submitted by National Grid and Verizon to 

install a jointly owned pole  P3139-1 at 275 Squire Rd, Revere, MA in accordance 

with the plan on a file. (Plan#30590222) 

8. 22-340 Hearing called as ordered on a petition submitted by Verizon and National Grid to 

install two jointly owned poles on Walnut St., Revere, MA near the intersection of 

Brookline St. Revere, MA for service to a new residential structure at 121 Walnut 

St. Revere, MA in accordance with the plan on file. (Plan #30660786) 

Communications 

9. 22-341 Communication from City Solicitor Paul Capizzi relative to CO 22-246 (Revere 

Police Department personnel matters) 



City Council – Regular Meeting December 12, 2022 

  

10. 22-342 Communication from the Mayor relative to an update regarding the Revere High 

School Construction Project 

Motions 

11. 22-343 Motion presented by Councillor Morabito, Councillor Novoselsky: That the City 

Council award Certificates of Appreciation to the "Singing Seniors" who bring 

holiday cheer throughout the City with their caroling. 

12. 22-344 Motion presented by Councillor Morabito: That the Mayor provide the City 

Council with an update on the following Council Order 22-143 that was approved 

by the Mayor on May 24, 2022:  That the Mayor request Community 

Development and the DPW to install decorative street lamps extending the entire 

length of Broadway. 

13. 22-345 Motion presented by Councillor Keefe: That the City Council award Certificates 

of Commendation to the Revere Pop Warner Cheerleaders in recognition of their 

success at the National Cheer Championships in Disney. 

14. 22-346 Motion presented by Councillor Novoselsky, Councillor Morabito: That the 

Mayor be requested to establish, as soon as possible, two positions (one full-time, 

and one part-time) for the Revere Society for Cultural and Historic Preservation at 

108 Beach Street.  Grants or CDBG could be used to fund these positions. 

15. 22-347 Motion presented by Councillor Rizzo: That the City Council award a Certificate 

of Commendation to Arthur W. Foshey in recognition of his 95th birthday.  Mr. 

Foshey is a 23 year Navy Veteran who served in WWII, Korean War, Vietnam 

War, and the Lebanon Crisis. 

Late Motions 

16. 22-348 Motion presented by Council President Visconti: That the City Council direct the 

City Clerk to draft a City Council Rule of Order for the purpose of providing 

guidelines for public participation at City Council meetings. 

17. 22-349 Motion presented by Councillor Serino, Councillor Rizzo: That the Mayor 

provide an update on Council Order 22-287 from the meeting of October 17, 2022 

relative to a request that a meeting be held to discuss the status of the property 

known as the Quality Inn located at 100 Morris Street with the Mayor, Inspector 

of Buildings, City Solicitor, License Commission, Frank Stringi and/or the new 

Community Development Director. 

Late Communication 

18. 22-324 Veto message from the Mayor relative to Council Order 22-324, An Act 

Repealing Chapter 402 of the Acts of 1965. 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting 

 

City Councillor 

Joseph A. DelGrosso 

City Council Chamber 

Journal 

Monday, December 5, 2022 
 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was called to order at 6:00 PM. President Gerry Visconti 

presiding.  

Salute to the Flag 
 

1 Roll Call of Members 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Anthony Cogliandro Councillor Present  

Patrick M. Keefe Councillor Present  

Joanne McKenna Councillor Present  

Steven Morabito Councillor Present  

Ira Novoselsky Councillor Present  

John F. Powers Councillor Present  

Dan Rizzo Councillor Present  

Richard J. Serino Councillor Present  

Marc Silvestri Councillor Present  

Anthony T. Zambuto Councillor Present  

Gerry Visconti President Present  
 

2 Approval of the Journal of the Regular Meeting of November 28, 2022 

RESULT: ACCEPTED 

Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee Report 

The Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee met on Monday evening, December 5, 2022 at 5:30PM 

in the City Councillor Joseph A. DelGrosso City Council Chamber of Revere City Hall, 281 

Broadway, Revere, MA 02151.  Committee members present were Councillors Keefe, Morabito, 

Novoselsky, Visconti (ex-officio), and Chairman Powers.  Councillor Rizzo was absent. 

 

22-300 An Ordinance Amending the Composition of the Public Art Commission 

 

Section 1.  Section 2.89.020(A) Commission composition, terms, appointments, and 

vacancies of the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere is hereby amended by deleting 

the words, "five and no more than seven" and inserting in place thereof the words, "seven 

and no more than nine". 

 

The Office of the Mayor offered the following suggestion via email:  “… amending the Public 

Art Commission ordinance by deleting the words, “five and no more than seven” and inserting in 

2

Packet Pg. 3

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
D

ec
 5

, 2
02

2 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

S
al

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e 
F

la
g

)



City Council – Regular Meeting December 5, 2022 

  

place thereof the words, “five and no more than nine”.  Doing so will allow us more flexibility in 

the future if we find it difficult to find enough folks who are interested in serving on the 

commission.” 

 

The Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee agreed with the suggested amendment.  Councillors 

Keefe, Morabito, Novoselsky, Visconti (ex-officio), and Chairman Powers voting in the 

affirmative. 

 

An Ordinance Amending the Composition of the Public Art Commission as amended is now 

before the committee. 

 

An Ordinance Amending the Composition of the Public Art Commission 

 

Section 1.  Section 2.89.020(A) Commission composition, terms, appointments, and vacancies of 

the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere is hereby amended by deleting the words, "five and 

no more than seven" and inserting in place thereof the words, "five and no more than nine". 

 

The ordinance as amended received a unanimous favorable recommendation for adoption.  

Councillors Keefe, Morabito, Novoselsky, Visconti (ex-officio), and Chairman Powers voting in 

the affirmative. 

 3 22-300 An Ordinance Amending the Composition of the Public Art Commission  

Section 1.  Section 2.89.020(A) Commission composition, terms, 

appointments, and vacancies of the Revised Ordinances of the City of 

Revere is hereby amended by deleting the words, "five and no more than 

seven" and inserting in place thereof the words, "seven and no more than 

nine". 

An Ordinance Amending the Composition of the Public Art Commission   

 

Section 1.  Section 2.89.020(A) Commission composition, terms, appointments, and vacancies of 

the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere is hereby amended by deleting the words, "five and 

no more than seven" and inserting in place thereof the words, "five and no more than nine". 

 

November 28, 2022 Ordered to a first reading. 

December 5, 2022 Ordered on a second reading, as amended. 

December 5, 2022 Ordered on a third and final reading, as amended. 

December 5, 2022 Ordered Engrossed and Ordained on a Roll Call. 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Powers, Rizzo, Serino, Silvestri, 

Zambuto, Visconti 

Zoning Sub-Committee Report 

The Zoning Sub-Committee met on Monday evening, December 5, 2022 at 5:45PM in the City 

Councillor Joseph A. DelGrosso City Council Chamber of Revere City Hall, 281 Broadway, 

Revere, MA 02151.  Committee members present were Councillors McKenna, Novoselsky, 

2

Packet Pg. 4

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
D

ec
 5

, 2
02

2 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

S
al

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e 
F

la
g

)



City Council – Regular Meeting December 5, 2022 

  

Powers, Serino, Visconti (ex-offcio), and Chairman Keefe. 

 

22-313 529 Broadway, LLC, 52 Fairview Street, Winthrop, MA 02152 to alter and extend 

a nonconforming use (nonconforming commercial building, acting as a private 

garage) for the purpose of operating a special garage at 535 Broadway, Revere, 

MA 02151. 

 

Nancy O’Neil, attorney for the applicant addressed the committee and provided fourteen (14) 

conditions as agreed upon by and between the direct abutter Ms. Shand, 130 School Street and 

the applicant. 

 

The City Planner also provided the following conditions to the City Council: 

 

1. A landscaped screening buffer and solid fence shall be installed along the property line 

on School Street and the abutting residential property to the north. The screening buffer 

shall be approved by the Site Plan Review Committee. 

2. Any spray booths shall be in compliance with Fire Dept., Health Dept. and Building 

Dept. safety codes including all ventilation requirements. 

3. No access or egress from the site shall be allowed on School Street and all curb cuts shall 

be closed to the site on School Street. 

4. There shall be no outdoor storage of junk or damaged cars including automobile parts and 

tires on the site. 

5. The plans must be reviewed and approved by the Fire Dept. for compliance with fire 

suppression and fire safety codes 

 

The Zoning Sub-Committee offered a favorable recommendation to the City Council to grant the 

relief requested subject to the conditions as discussed.  Councillors McKenna, Novoselsky, 

Powers, Serino, Visconti (ex-offcio), and Chairman Keefe voting in the affirmative. 

 4 22-313 529 Broadway, LLC, 52 Fairview Street, Winthrop, MA 02152 to alter 

and extend a nonconforming use (nonconforming commercial building, 

acting as a private garage) for the purpose of operating a special garage at 

535 Broadway, Revere, MA 02151. 

"SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL GRANT THE RELIEF BY THE PETITIONER 

SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY THE CITY PLANNER AND THE 

PETITIONER'S ATTORNEY AS REPORTED OUT BY THE ZONING SUB-

COMMITTEE?” 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Powers, Rizzo, Serino, Silvestri, 

Zambuto, Visconti 

Communications 

 5 22-330 Communication relative to the Appropriation of Opioid Settlement Funds 

to Opioid Recovery and Remediation Trust Fund. 

2

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
D

ec
 5

, 2
02

2 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

S
al

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e 
F

la
g

)



City Council – Regular Meeting December 5, 2022 

  

“SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE AN APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $254,470 FROM THE GENERAL FUND OTHER REVENUE ACCOUNT TO THE 

OPIOID SETTLEMENT ABATEMENT TRUST FUND?” 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Powers, Rizzo, Serino, Silvestri, 

Zambuto, Visconti 

Motions 

 6 22-331 Motion presented by Councillor Keefe: That the City Council award a 

Certificate of Appreciation to Sgt. Joseph Internicola and the leadership at 

MassBadge who helped organize and execute Revere's annual community 

Thanksgiving.  This year, the event served over 600 people and provided 

over 100 meals to go, all through charitable and in kind donations from 

our community members. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 7 22-332 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor direct the 

DPW to provide the City Council with a list and/or timeline of upcoming 

water main repairs, street pavings and sidewalk repairs for 2023. This will 

help us alleviate some communication on the issue as we can respond 

quickly to residents. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 8 22-333 Motion presented by Councillor Zambuto: That the Mayor request the 

Policy Writer & Analyst and Fire Prevention to draft an ordinance or 

special legislation establishing regulations for the licensure of the indoor 

storage of electric vehicles.  There have been numerous reports of electric 

car batteries igniting and causing fires. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 9 22-334 Motion presented by Councillor Silvestri: That the Mayor request the State 

Delegation to re-file a bond bill in the next legislative session for the 

installation of sound barriers along Route One North and South.  A bond 

bill for this purpose was filed in 2020, but not acted upon during the Baker 

administration. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 

 

Ordered adjourned at 6:15 PM. 

 

2

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
D

ec
 5

, 2
02

2 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

S
al

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e 
F

la
g

)



City Council – Regular Meeting December 5, 2022 

  

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

 

City Clerk 

2

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
D

ec
 5

, 2
02

2 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

S
al

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e 
F

la
g

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



3.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
10

.2
97

L
ee

B
u

rb
an

kH
ig

h
w

ay
  (

22
-3

35
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

 C
-2

2-
10

, 2
97

 L
ee

 B
u

rb
an

k 
H

ig
h

w
ay

)



4.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



4.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.C

22
11

.1
63

S
h

ir
le

yA
ve

n
u

e 
 (

22
-3

36
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, C
-2

2-
11

, 1
63

 S
h

ir
le

y 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
37

9 
F

er
n

w
o

o
d

 A
ve

 t
w

o
 p

o
le

s 
N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

  (
22

-3
37

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 &

 V
er

iz
o

n
 t

o
 in

st
al

l t
w

o
 jo

in
tl

y 
p

o
le

s 
o

n



5.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
37

9 
F

er
n

w
o

o
d

 A
ve

 t
w

o
 p

o
le

s 
N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

  (
22

-3
37

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 &

 V
er

iz
o

n
 t

o
 in

st
al

l t
w

o
 jo

in
tl

y 
p

o
le

s 
o

n



5.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
37

9 
F

er
n

w
o

o
d

 A
ve

 t
w

o
 p

o
le

s 
N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

  (
22

-3
37

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 &

 V
er

iz
o

n
 t

o
 in

st
al

l t
w

o
 jo

in
tl

y 
p

o
le

s 
o

n



5.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
37

9 
F

er
n

w
o

o
d

 A
ve

 t
w

o
 p

o
le

s 
N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

  (
22

-3
37

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 &

 V
er

iz
o

n
 t

o
 in

st
al

l t
w

o
 jo

in
tl

y 
p

o
le

s 
o

n



6.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

0N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

U
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
C

o
n

d
u

it
s 

 (
22

-3
38

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 t

o
 in

st
al

l u
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
 c

o
n

d
u

it
s 

F
er

n
w

o
o

d
 A

ve
.)



6.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

0N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

U
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
C

o
n

d
u

it
s 

 (
22

-3
38

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 t

o
 in

st
al

l u
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
 c

o
n

d
u

it
s 

F
er

n
w

o
o

d
 A

ve
.)



6.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

0N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

U
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
C

o
n

d
u

it
s 

 (
22

-3
38

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 t

o
 in

st
al

l u
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
 c

o
n

d
u

it
s 

F
er

n
w

o
o

d
 A

ve
.)



6.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

0N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

U
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
C

o
n

d
u

it
s 

 (
22

-3
38

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 t

o
 in

st
al

l u
n

d
er

g
ro

u
n

d
 c

o
n

d
u

it
s 

F
er

n
w

o
o

d
 A

ve
.)



7.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
 2

2-
53

81
N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

jo
in

tp
o

le
27

5S
q

u
ir

eR
d

.  
(2

2-
33

9 
: 

N
at

io
n

al
 G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 in
st

al
l o

n
e 

jo
in

tl
y 

o
w

n
ed

 p
o

le



7.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
 2

2-
53

81
N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

jo
in

tp
o

le
27

5S
q

u
ir

eR
d

.  
(2

2-
33

9 
: 

N
at

io
n

al
 G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 in
st

al
l o

n
e 

jo
in

tl
y 

o
w

n
ed

 p
o

le



7.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
 2

2-
53

81
N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

jo
in

tp
o

le
27

5S
q

u
ir

eR
d

.  
(2

2-
33

9 
: 

N
at

io
n

al
 G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 in
st

al
l o

n
e 

jo
in

tl
y 

o
w

n
ed

 p
o

le



7.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
 2

2-
53

81
N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
V

er
iz

o
n

jo
in

tp
o

le
27

5S
q

u
ir

eR
d

.  
(2

2-
33

9 
: 

N
at

io
n

al
 G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 in
st

al
l o

n
e 

jo
in

tl
y 

o
w

n
ed

 p
o

le



8.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

2N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

V
er

iz
o

n
jo

in
tp

o
le

sW
al

n
u

t 
S

t.
  (

22
-3

40
 :

 N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 t
o

 in
st

al
l t

w
o

 jo
in

tl
y 

p
o

le
s 

o
n

 W
al

n
u

t



8.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

2N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

V
er

iz
o

n
jo

in
tp

o
le

sW
al

n
u

t 
S

t.
  (

22
-3

40
 :

 N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 t
o

 in
st

al
l t

w
o

 jo
in

tl
y 

p
o

le
s 

o
n

 W
al

n
u

t



8.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

2N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

V
er

iz
o

n
jo

in
tp

o
le

sW
al

n
u

t 
S

t.
  (

22
-3

40
 :

 N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 t
o

 in
st

al
l t

w
o

 jo
in

tl
y 

p
o

le
s 

o
n

 W
al

n
u

t



8.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

lo
rd

er
22

-5
38

2N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

V
er

iz
o

n
jo

in
tp

o
le

sW
al

n
u

t 
S

t.
  (

22
-3

40
 :

 N
at

io
n

al
G

ri
d

 &
 V

er
iz

o
n

 t
o

 in
st

al
l t

w
o

 jo
in

tl
y 

p
o

le
s 

o
n

 W
al

n
u

t



9.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

em
o

 t
o

 C
o

u
n

ci
l C

.O
. 2

2-
24

6 
- 

P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 1
2.

07
.2

02
2 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.b

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
.6

0 
- 

P
o

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

(1
2.

06
.2

02
2)

  (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
.6

0 
- 

P
o

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

(1
2.

06
.2

02
2)

  (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.b

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
.6

0 
- 

P
o

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

(1
2.

06
.2

02
2)

  (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.b

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
.6

0 
- 

P
o

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

(1
2.

06
.2

02
2)

  (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.c

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

10
2 

o
f 

th
e 

A
ct

s 
o

f 
20

01
 -

 P
o

lic
e 

C
h

ie
f 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.d

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
lic

eC
h

ie
fA

ss
es

sm
en

tR
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
tr

ac
t0

72
02

01
7 

 (
22

-3
41

 :
 P

ar
ti

al
 R

es
p

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

O
 2

2-
24

6)



9.e

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rr
ig

o
L

et
te

rC
o

u
n

ci
l-

A
u

g
20

17
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



1 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF REVERE 

HUMAN RESOURCES  

ORGANIZATIONAL AND POLICY REVIEW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

9.f

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



2 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Revere (City) engaged the services of the Collins Center for Public 

Management (Collins Center) to perform a Human Resources Organization and Policy 

review and provide recommendations. 

 

According to the Society for Human Resource Management, human resource 

management is the formal structure within an organization responsible for all the 

decisions, strategies, factors, principles, operations practices, functions, activities and 

methods related to the management of people.  

 

A human resources review is wise in order to take an objective look at policies, practices, 

procedures, staffing and systems to identify opportunities for improvement and adopt 

best practices. A review can also help an organization know if they are on the right track 

in terms of effectiveness and efficiency. Oftentimes, it is not what an organization is doing 

with human resources, but what it is not doing.  

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The following report identifies and discusses numerous human resource issues for the 

City. The key recommendations are to: 

 Establish a centralized Human Resources Department, with a director, group 

benefits coordinator and an administrative employee; 

 Centralize all recruitment and selection processes; 

 Develop a comprehensive compensation and classification system including 

position descriptions; 

 Promulgate a comprehensive series of policies and procedures including conflict 

of interest/ethics, criminal offenders records inquiries, Family and Medical Leave 

Act procedures, absenteeism, discrimination prevention and discipline; 

 Provide training to department heads and supervisors on critical policies and 

develop a long-term approach to training; 

 Modify the residency requirement to a preference to employ individuals that 

reside in the City. 

9.f

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



3 
 

 File a special act exempting the City from the Massachusetts Civil Service law for 

all positions except uniformed positions below the rank of chief in the police and 

fire departments. 

 

METHODOLOGY 
 
In order to evaluate the current human resources systems, extensive interviews were 

conducted. The Collins Center team conducted interviews with key staff including the 

mayor, finance director, assistant treasurer/collector, auditor, public works director, 

police chief, fire chief, library director, director of recreation, benefits coordinator, city 

solicitor, superintendent of public works, director of municipal inspections, school 

superintendent, school payroll manager and school benefits coordinator. Numerous 

documents were reviewed, including ordinances, collective bargaining agreements, 

budgets and policies. 

 

EXISTING STAFFING AND SCOPE OF OPERATIONS 
 
The City, employs approximately 425 full and part time regular employees and numerous 

temporary, casual and seasonal employees. The School Department employs 

approximately 1375 regular, part time and temporary employees. The City has 506 

benefited retirees. The City’s operating budget is in excess of $170 million.  

 

The City does not have a human resources department. At one time, the City did have a 

personnel director, but the position was eliminated. At this time, the human resources 

functions are dispersed across various departments and positions. 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES FUNCTIONS 
 
The following table identifies core human resource functions and identifies which 

positions and/or departments have responsibility for, or participate, in them. 

 

9.f

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



4 
 

Function Responsible Position/Department 
 

Recruitment Department Heads 
Mayor’s Office 

Civil Service- Police & Fire Police Chief and Fire Chief 

Civil Service – Labor Service DPW 

CORI, References and Background Checks Police Department, Mayor's Office 

Orientation Department Heads 
 

Personnel Files Various departments 
 

Computerized Employee Records Assistant Treasurer 
 

Position Descriptions No consistent system 
 

Classification and Compensation Most classification and compensation 
issues are dictated by collective 
bargaining agreements. Nonunion 
classification and compensation is set by 
the Mayor. 
 

Fair Labor Standards Act (exempt/non-
exempt) and Overtime and Compensatory 
Time 

Mayor’s Office 
Department Heads 
 

Payroll Assistant Treasurer 
 

Benefits and Insurance – Health, Life Dental, 
Optional 
 

Benefits Coordinator 

Deferred Compensation Assistant Treasurer 
 

Personnel Policy Administration/Compliance 
 

Mayor’s Office 

Training Department Heads 
 

Leave Accruals and Tracking Department Heads 
Payroll Supervisor 
 

Family Medical Leave Act Rarely utilized. No policy or system 
 

9.f

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



5 
 

Function Responsible Position/Department 
 

Workers Compensation Assistant Treasurer in consultation with 
3rd party administrator 
 

Injured on Duty (Police/Fire) Police Chief and Fire Chief in 
consultation with 3rd party administrator 
 

Employee Relations Mayor’s Office 
 

Disability and Accommodation Issues 
 

Mayor’s Office 
Labor Counsel 
 

Collective Bargaining and Labor Relations Mayor’s Office 
Labor Counsel 
 

Performance Appraisal Department Heads, when done. Not 
consistently done across city departments 
 

 

As evidenced by the many people and departments identified as having the responsibility 

for the core human resource functions, it is clear the City does not have centralized human 

resource systems, policies and practices. The result is a disjointed, inconsistent and 

deficient system. Interviews with department heads and staff, the universal response was 

that the City needs to comprehensively improve its human resources administration. 

Universally, it was articulated during these interviews that there is systemic lack of a 

robust human resources function within the municipal organization in Revere.  

 

HUMAN RESOURCE COMPLIANCE  
 
The following sections are a discussion of many of the core human resource issues. 

 

Recruitment. The City does not have centralized hiring practices and procedures. Under 

the current administration, efforts have been made to centralize the hiring of new 

employees. In the past, individuals have been hired into positions without any 

coordinated recruitment practice and, in some circumstances, have been placed into 

positions without the knowledge of the department head. For the sake of consistency, the 

prevention of discrimination and documentation, recruitment should be centralized. 

9.f

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



6 
 

 

Residency. The City has a restrictive residency requirement which hinders the ability to 

recruit the best possible candidates for positions. While the residency requirement can be 

waived, it sends a chilling effect to potential candidates and discourages people from other 

municipalities from applying for positions. The City should change its policy from a 

residency requirement to a residency preference. Doing so will encourage qualified 

candidates to apply for positions, particularly at the department head level.  

 

Civil Service. The antiquated civil service law in Massachusetts is divided in to a merit 

system (official service) and a registration system (labor service). The police and fire 

departments are responsible for complying with the official civil service law, appointing 

individuals based on the placement on a list issued by Commonwealth as a result of testing 

and other preferences (minority, veteran’s status, etc.). Most other positions in cities are 

subject to the official civil service provisions but generating lists of candidates has been 

abandoned by the Commonwealth for many years, leaving an entire body of employees in 

limbo. The public works department is subject to labor service, appointing individuals 

based on the date of registration on a list maintained by the City. Department heads 

coordinate the efforts of requesting and/or generating the civil service lists and following 

civil service regulations for selecting candidates. It is recommended that the City file a 

special act with the Legislature to exempt itself from the provisions of the Massachusetts 

Civil Service Law for all positions except for unformed positions below the rank of chief 

in the police and fire departments. 

 

Criminal Offender Records Inquiries. (CORI), References and Background 

Checks. A comprehensive approach to CORI, reference checks and background checks 

does not exist. The Police department is involved in many background verifications, but 

it is not a best practice. The recent practice has been that the Mayor’s Office performs 

CORI checks. The City should have one or two authorized employees to conduct CORI 

checks with the Criminal Records Review Board and develop a comprehensive CORI 

policy. 

 

9.f

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



7 
 

References are not consistently performed and no records exist documenting references. 

The City should establish a reference policy, not only for verifying credentials of potential 

employees, but also restricting individual employees from giving references on behalf of 

the City. 

 

Background checks and verifications need to be done in a consistent manner by type of 

position. The same process does not need to be followed for every type of position, but 

must be followed for all backgrounds conducted for the same position. Documentation of 

all background checks must be maintained. 

 

Employment Application. The City does not have a city-wide standard employment 

application and does not have one that is current and in compliance with state and federal 

laws. For example, the employment application for one department asks for age, another 

asks for social security number and neither has all the employer statements required by 

law. Applications must include items such as allowing for volunteer activities to be listed, 

a statement regarding discrimination and a statement indicating lie detectors may not be 

used to verify information. Applications may not include inquiries into social security 

number, date of birth, medical information, and criminal background. Every application 

should also have a statement requiring the applicant to sign their name and indicate the 

information on the application is accurate and authorizing the City to verify all 

information. 

 

It is acceptable for the City to receive resumes for positions, however, it is recommended 

that all applicants be required to complete a standard application. By doing so, objective 

analysis of candidates can occur and specific data may be obtained, in addition to securing 

a signature regarding accuracy and truthfulness. 

 

Orientation. The City has no onboarding system for new employees. Department heads 

are expected to train the employee, which makes sense, but there is no system to guide a 

person who has been selected for a position in the steps that need to be followed. The 

process is typically the sharing of an appointment letter, but it often does not get fully 

distributed to the necessary departments, or if it is, it is done after the new employee has 

9.f

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



8 
 

started working. The payroll supervisor and the benefits coordinator are usually able to 

guide the new employee with what forms are necessary, how to enroll in various benefits 

and enrolment in the retirement system. Similarly, when the school department hires an 

individual, there is inconsistent communication between the City and the school 

department. A standardized personnel action form should be created and instituted for 

all employment changes, from new hire to compensation changes to termination. 

 

Personnel Files. The City has no system of comprehensive or official personnel files. 

Personnel records are kept by department heads, by the Mayor’s office, by the benefits 

coordinator, by the payroll supervisor and the assistant treasurer. The City should 

centralize all personnel files and maintain and secure them in accordance with state and 

federal regulations. Departments are able to keep departmental information if copies are 

in the official personnel file. 

 

Position Descriptions. The City does not have position descriptions for most 

positions. Recently, the City has made an effort to create a new position description for 

each position being newly filled, which is a start. Otherwise, position descriptions, if they 

exist, are inconsistent and outdated. The City should update all position descriptions to 

be in a standard format.  

 

Classification and Compensation. Many of the City’s employees are members of 

collective bargaining units. As such, classification and compensation are determined by 

negotiation. However, in the past, there have been instances where salary adjustments 

have been made outside of collective bargaining. All compensation of union positions 

must be done through collective bargaining. Non-union classification and compensation 

should be reviewed, particularly with respect to position description, grade structure and 

salary structure. 

 

Performance Appraisal. The City does not evaluate employees in a consistent manner. 

While a performance appraisal tool exists, it is substandard and is not consistently used. 

Only a few departments are truly evaluating employees. Additionally, without accurate 

position descriptions with clear expectations, and without training for those who will 

9.f

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



9 
 

conduct the evaluations, attempting to implement an evaluation system is futile. In order 

for a performance appraisal system to be successful, the City should update position 

descriptions, create an effective performance appraisal tool, train all evaluators, and have 

the HR department be responsible for reviewing all evaluations to ensure consistent 

application of the system.  

 

Payroll. The City employs a payroll supervisor in the treasury. Payroll processes in the 

treasury works well. The school, police and fire departments enter payroll data and it is 

processed by the payroll supervisor. Other departmental payroll submissions and time 

sheets are inconsistent by department, but because payroll is centralized few problems 

exist. Departments should be required to use a standardized form or system in submitting 

payroll in order to streamline and improve the payroll process.  

 

While the payroll process works well once submitted, each department has individualized 

methods of collecting data, tracking hours and processing time and attendance at the 

department level. In most instances, redundancy of documenting time and attendance 

occurs. For example, in some departments, time sheets are completed by the employee, 

reviewed by the supervisor, submitted to the departmental administrative staff, entered 

into an excel spreadsheet, re-entered onto payroll sheets and then submitted to the 

payroll office. Much time is wasted in duplicating the documentation of time and 

attendance. The City should automate the entry of payroll across all departments.  

 

Benefits. The City does a good job in the area of benefits. Both the benefits coordinator, 

who handles, health, life, dental and other optional insurances, and the assistant treasurer 

who handles retirement, deferred compensation, cafeteria plans, short and long term 

disability plans, are efficient and effective. By having these functions centralized, the 

established procedures and systems work well.  

 

Leave Accruals. Leave usage, such as vacation, sick and other leaves, is entered into the 

MUNIS software as payroll is processed and balances appear on employee pay checks. 

Individual department staff also track leave accruals and usage and oftentimes the 

records to not match those on the paychecks which causes lost time due to cross checking 

9.f

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



10 
 

leave balances. While leave benefits are dictated by collective bargaining agreements for 

some employees, there has been an inconsistent application of the methods of accruals.  

 

Leave Administration. It is important for leave to be administered centrally to ensure 

that policies and benefits are being administered consistently among all employees, in 

accordance with policies, collective bargaining agreements and state and federal laws. It 

is important that individual department heads and supervisors are applying the rules 

consistently. The various collective bargaining agreements determine leave accruals, 

usage rules and carryover provisions. There is evidence that not all departments 

consistently apply collective bargaining provisions, particularly with respect to vacation 

carryover. It is important to have a centralized authority on collective bargaining 

administration in order to ensure equal and fair application of collective bargaining 

agreements and usage of leave across departments.  

 

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). It is critical the City create an FMLA policy. The 

City needs to be aware of the provisions and requirements of the FMLA and should be 

designating the time employees are out for qualifying circumstances in accordance with 

the law. A policy must be created and department heads need to be educated with the 

requirements to notify the appointing authority when an employee is on leave that could 

or should be designated as FMLA leave. It is also important that the FMLA is 

administered consistently across all departments to ensure employees are treated 

similarly. Individual department heads should not be administering FMLA leave. It 

should be administered by the human resources department. 

 

Training. The City does not provide sufficient training to its managers and employees. 

While some trainings have occurred in response to specific issues or concerns, a policy or 

formal approach to training does not exist. The City should conduct a training needs 

assessment of its employees and develop a short and long range plan to address the 

identified needs. Supervisory training is especially critical. 

 

Sexual Harassment and Discrimination Prevention Policies. It is critical that 

the City update its sexual harassment prevention and discrimination policies. The City’s 

9.f

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



11 
 

policies are outdated and has it has not conducted training on these matters. State law 

requires the sexual harassment policy be distributed to each employee every year. The 

City is not complying with this requirement. It is also a best practice to train supervisors 

and managers periodically on these laws and their personal and professional 

responsibilities and liabilities in discrimination cases. Without policies and training on 

discrimination issues in the workplace, the City, and its officials, are exposing themselves 

to potential liability. 

 

Group Health Insurance Plans. It is recommended the City evaluate all its group 

health insurance products and services to determine if the products, premiums and 

programs are meeting the City’s needs both financially and the level benefits provided. 

The City should engage the services of an independent insurance advisor, not an 

insurance broker, to comprehensively evaluate insurance issues for the City to determine 

how it should fund its insurance programs. 

 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP). The City does not have an employee 

assistance program. EAPs are relatively inexpensive and provide a beneficial service to 

employees and supervisors. EAPs provide advice to supervisors on how to address 

employee issues and provide training on a host of those issues. Additionally, and more 

importantly, EAPs provide confidential services to employees and their families, 

including counseling, financial planning, family referrals, and legal assistance. The City 

should secure an EAP either through a health insurance plan or a stand-alone service. 

 

Workplace Injuries. The City manages workplace injuries fairly well with the help of 

third party administrators. The police and fire chiefs coordinate injured on duty cases in 

their respective departments and the assistant treasurer serves as the liaison for non-

public safety workers compensation cases. The City could be more aggressive in moving 

employees along in the process of returning to work or seeking other alternatives. Too 

often, employees languish out on leave without sufficient follow up. Currently, 

department heads have the responsibility to reach out to employees out on injury leave 

and work with third party administrators. Such a practice is not practical or wise. 

Department heads should not be involved in discussing medical conditions and treatment 

9.f

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



12 
 

plans about employees. A human resources professional with an understanding of 

workplace injury issues should be working directly with the third party administrators in 

a more comprehensive, hands-on approach on workplace injury management.  

 

Conflict of Interest. It is critical the City create a conflict of interest policy. The City 

does not have a policy and has not conducted mandated training on conflict of interest 

laws. The City should conduct annual city-wide training on conflict of interest laws. 

 

Discipline Policies and Procedures. It is critical the City develop a comprehensive, 

centralized approach to discipline. Without a unified approach to discipline, the City is 

exposed to liability with respect to unfair labor practices, grievances and claims of 

discrimination and disparate treatment. The City is the employer and should have one 

voice in dealing with city-wide issues such as discipline. Even though collective bargaining 

agreements may have grievance procedures that involve department heads, the approach 

to discipline should be centralized through the human resources department. All 

supervisors, whether they are subject to a collective bargaining agreement or not, should 

be trained on the principles of progressive discipline and must understand that the City 

is one employer and cannot administer disciplinary processes inconsistently.   

 

Personnel Policies. The City has no personnel policy guide or system. The following 

table represents the policies the City should adopt. A sample of each policy has been 

submitted to the City electronically.  

Access & Use of Telecommunications Systems 

Alcohol & Drug Use 

Anti-Fraud 

Attendance Policy Statement 

Basic Life Insurance 

Conduct 

Conflict of Interest and Financial Disclosure 

Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 

9.f

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



13 
 

Criminal and Sexual Offender Registry Information 

Discipline 

Discrimination Prevention 

Discrimination Grievance Procedure 

Domestic Violence Prevention 

Dress Code 

Drug Free Workplace 

Employee Grievance Procedure 

Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action  

Family Medical Leave Act 

Health Insurance 

Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act 

Hours of Work and Overtime 
   Payroll Submission Form 
   Compensatory Time for Non-Exempt Employees 
   Meal & Break Period 
   Emergency Closing Policy 

Maternity & Paternity Leave 

Military Leave 

Personnel Records 

Political Activity 

Recruitment & Selection 
   Policy 
   Vacancy 
   Recruitment 
   Offer of Employment 
   Salary increments/Benefit Levels 
   Pre-employment Physical Exams 
   Probationary Period 

Reference 

Retirement 

Retiree Health Insurance Benefits 

Sexual Harassment Prevention 

9.f

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



14 
 

Sick Leave 

Small Necessities Leave Act 

Social Networking 

Travel Reimbursement 

Vacation 

Vehicle Use and Reimbursement 

Whistleblower Protection 

Workplace Injuries 
   Workers Compensation 
   Police & Fire Injuries 

Workplace Safety 

Workplace Violence Prevention 

  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Municipalities expend the majority budget dollars on personnel costs. Especially in light 

of the increase in compliance and documentation requirements of federal and state laws 

and mandates, it is important from a practical and liability perspective to have a focus on 

human resource management. The risks of not paying attention to human resources are 

great, particularly in the fast-changing human resources landscape. 

The City has already made a commitment to centralize the human resources function, 

which is the critical first step in creating a modern human resources system. The Collins 

Center recommends the creation of a human resources department with a director 

reporting to the Mayor as a “cabinet” level position. Employee issues should be a top 

priority in the effective and efficient operation of the municipal organization. 

Additionally, it is imperative for employees to have a place to go if they have concerns or 

confidential matters to discuss. The human resources director can be the conduit to the 

chief executive on these critical issues. 

Initially, the human resources department should consist of the human resources 

director, the benefits coordinator and an administrative employee. Human resource 

9.f

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



15 
 

administration is heavily based in documentation, tracking and record keeping. It will be 

critical to have administrative staff for the department. After the department is 

established, the City may consider transferring payroll functions to human resources, but 

this can be phased in as the department is established and systems are in place to enable 

this transfer of responsibility.  In addition to the functions of the benefits coordinator, the 

following functions should be moved to, or become, the responsibility of the human 

resources department. 

FUNCTION/RESPONSIBILITY RECOMMENDATION 

Personnel Files All official personnel files should be 

maintained by the HR Department. 

Recruitment Process All vacancies should be processed through 

the HR department. Communication about 

new hires should be coordinated by HR 

with other departments. HR should 

develop standardized forms. 

Civil Service The City should be exempt from civil 

service in all positions except for 

uninformed positions below the rank of 

chief in the police and fire departments. 

The HR department should be responsible 

for all requisitions and record keeping for 

police and fire transactions with the 

Commonwealth. 

Equal Employment The HR Director should serve as the Equal 

Employment officer and deal with issues of 

discrimination and accommodation. 

Employee Onboarding and Orientation  The HR Department should serve as the 

point destination for onboarding new 

employees, coordinating paperwork and 

other requirements with necessary 

departments.  

9.f

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



16 
 

FUNCTION/RESPONSIBILITY RECOMMENDATION 

Classification, Compensation and 

Position Descriptions 

The HR Department should be responsible 

for the development and maintenance of 

position descriptions, and a classification 

and compensation system.  

Performance Appraisal Once a comprehensive position description, 

classification and compensation system is 

constructed, the City should pursue an 

evaluation system. 

Workplace Injuries The liaison role to the third party 

administrators should be the responsibility 

of the HR department which can 

coordinate with departments. 

Collective Bargaining The HR Director should support and 

participate in collective bargaining. 

Collective Bargaining Agreement 

Administration 

The HR Director should be the authority on 

the interpretation of collective bargaining 

agreements to ensure consistent 

application across departments. 

Leave Administration Coordinating with the payroll supervisor, 

the HR Department should be responsible 

for the consistent application of leave 

benefits as delineated in policies and 

collective bargaining agreements. 

Personnel Policy Administration The HR Director should recommend and 

implement all personnel policies. 

Training After the creation of critical policies, the 

City should train department heads and 

supervisors. Once completed, a 

comprehensive approach to broader 

training needs should be developed. 

9.f

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



17 
 

 

As stated in this report, the City is in critical need of establishing a centralized human 

resources department, as most cities of its size and complexity. The City has experienced 

litigation, increased legal expenses, challenges in the inability to recruit and retain talent, 

and poor morale; all of which impacts the delivery of services to its residents and 

businesses. 

By making a commitment to create a comprehensive, centralized human resources 

department, the City will take a giant leap towards enhancing the organization, being fully 

compliant with state and federal laws and applying the appropriate resources to its most 

important resource, its employees, the people who deliver critical the services to its 

inhabitants. 

 

 

9.f

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
lli

n
s-

F
in

al
 R

ev
er

e 
H

R
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The City of Revere Police Department 

Revere, Massachusetts 
 

(An Independent Organizational Review) 

 

April 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ryan Strategies Group, LLC 
Concord, Massachusetts 

www.ryanstrategies.com 

9.g

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 2 

Introduction 
 

The City of Revere retained Ryan Strategy Group (RSG) for the purpose of evaluating the 

current status of the Revere Police Department with the expectation that RSG will make 

specific recommendations to strengthen the Department. The scope of this study includes, 

but is not limited to: 

 

• A review of the organizational structure 

• A review of the current selection and staffing practices 

• A review of deployment and scheduling practices 

• An assessment as to whether the Department is embracing best practices in 

community-based policing 

• Identification of possible alternative service delivery options for certain services 

• Identification of policies, procedures and protocols that need to be updated or 

adopted in order to comply with regional and national policing standards 

• The completion of a community feedback survey 

• The completion of an internal Departmental survey 

 

The specific actions that RSG took in order to review the Department and outline these 

recommendations is outlined in detail in the project scope of services. 

 

RSG would like to acknowledge the high level of cooperation we received from Mayor 

Arrigo and his staff, from Acting Chief Guido, from the command staff, from the patrol 

officers, from union representatives and from civilian personnel in the police Department. 

These officials and employees consistently made themselves available and spent a 

considerable amount of time gathering information that was necessary to complete this 

study.  It is always somewhat awkward when an external party conducts a review of your 

organization. The Mayor and the leadership of the Revere Police Department managed this 

situation in a manner that was professional and forthcoming.  

 

The process to implement many of the recommendations in this report is already 

underway.  

 

Major Theme of Findings  
  

This report contains 37 distinct recommendations that have been grouped into five 

categories.  However, the vast majority of these recommendations fall under three over-

arching themes.  These themes are as follows: 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 3 

I. The Department needs to be more intentional about engaging with the Community 

and employing contemporary community policing strategies.  

II. The Department needs to be restructured so that there are clear lines of 

accountability, a reasonable scope of responsibility, and a logical grouping of duties 

and tasks. 

III. The Department needs to shift personnel resources and reconsider some of its 

current methods of service delivery in order to free up resources that can be 

redirected to the front-line patrol officer function. 

 

Background on Community Policing 

 

The United States Department of Justice, Department of Community Oriented Police 

Services, defines Community Policing as: 

 

“Community Policing is a philosophy that promotes organizational strategies that 

support the systematic use of partnerships and problem-solving techniques to 

proactively address the immediate conditions that give rise to public safety issues such 

as crime, social disorder, and fear of crime.” 

The goal is to identify, prioritize and solve problems such as crime, drugs, fear of crime, 

social and physical disorder and overall neighborhood decay in an effort to improve the 

quality of life in the area. It requires that the public trusts the Department and has 

confidence that the Department leadership will value public input and follow through on 

commitments.  This philosophy should be integrated into every decision the Department 

makes and should permeate the entire culture of the organization.  

 

Community Policing vs. Reactive Policing 

 

Police Departments that do not implement a community policing philosophy are often 

defined as “reactive” Departments. In a reactive police Department, responding to calls for 

service is often considered to be a strategy unto itself. To the extent that intermittent 

efforts are made to develop community partnerships and engage the public in problem 

solving, the Department leadership will often consider these efforts to be niceties that fall 

outside the core function of the Department. Often this community engagement is limited 

to sending Department representative to meetings if and only if a representative has been 

requested. 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 4 

The Question of Resources  

 

Often Departments that do not implement a community policing philosophy cite a lack of 

financial or staffing resources as the reason for their decision. However, community 

policing is better understood as a philosophy that drives every decision that a Department 

makes about how it deploys its resources, even if those resources are limited. Furthermore, 

to the extent that a community has limited resources, it becomes all the more important to 

proactively address the issues that give rise to the calls for service, rather than to just try to 

stay ahead of the calls for service. 

 

  

9.g

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 5 

Recommendations 
 

Listed below are RSG’s 37 distinct recommendations, which we have grouped into five 

different categories. 

 

 

1. Restructure Organization to Promote Accountable and Reflect Priorities 
 

o Recommendation 1:  Move Internal Affairs Unit to the Office of the Chief – page 6 

o Recommendation 2:  Eliminate Executive Officer Position – page 6 

o Recommendation 3:  Select Acting Chief from Captains – page 7 

o Recommendation 4:  Organize the RPD into Four Major Divisions – page 7 

o Recommendation 5:  Amend the Ordinance to allow Four Captains – page 7 

o Recommendation 6:  Modify Patrol Operations Division – page 8 

o Recommendation 7:  Modify Criminal Investigation Division – page 9 

o Recommendation 8:  Create a Professional Standards Division – page 10 

o Recommendation 9:  Create a Community Services Division – page 14 

o Recommendation 10:  Create sworn Community Resources Officer – page 16 

o Recommendation 11:  Create non-sworn Community Engagement Coordinator - 

page 16 

o Recommendation 12:  Amend Selection Process for the Chief – page 17 

o Recommendation 13:  Establish New Selection Process and Criteria - page 19 

 

2. Restructure Staffing, Shifts and Sectors to Align with Goals 
 

o Recommendation 14: Reduce Lieutenants and Sergeants by Attrition – page 19 

o Recommendation 15: Conduct Annual Review of Specialized Assignments – page 22 

o Recommendation 16:  Create Impact Shift Pilot Program – page 23 

o Recommendation 17:  Replace Split Shifts with Straight Shifts – page 24 

o Recommendation 18:  Increase Foot Patrols – page 25 

o Recommendation 19:  Change Schedule for Canine Unit – page 25 

o Recommendation 20:  Change Schedule for Traffic Unit – page 25 

o Recommendation 21:  Reduce the Number of Sectors from Seven to Five – page 26 

o Recommendation 22:  Discontinue Special Operations Unit and Use Regional 

Resources – page 26 

o Recommendation 23:  Transfer Civilian Crossing Guards to School System – page 28 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 6 

3. Invest in Workforce Development 
 

o Recommendation 24:  Update and Refocus Training Plan – page 28 

o Recommendation 25:  Establish a Leadership Development Steering Committee – 

page 29 

o Recommendation 26:  Conduct Mentorship/Goal-Setting Meetings – page 30 

o Recommendation 27:  Implement Line Staff Uniform and Appearance Inspections – 

page 31 

o Recommendation 28:  Return to Traditional Municipal Policy Uniform – page 31 

o Recommendation 29:  Establish an Early Warning System for Officers at Risk – page 

31 

 

4. Take Proactive Steps to Engage the Community 
 

o Recommendation 30:  Create a Community Engagement Plan – page 33 

o Recommendation 31:  Establish/Formalize Community Partnerships – page 34 

o Recommendation 32:  Create Community Action Teams – page 34 

 

5.   Update Policies and Procedures and Other Recommendations 

 

o Recommendation 33:  Attain Certification and then Accreditation – page 35 

o Recommendation 34:  Update/Develop New Policies and Procedures – page 37 

o Recommendation 35:  Revise Procedures for Property/Evidence Audits – page 39 

o Recommendation 36:  UASI Liaison / FEMA/MEMA Liaison – page 41 

o Recommendation 37:  Conduct Annual SWOT Analysis – page 41 

 

6.  Appendices 
 

o Appendix A:  New Organizational Chart 

o Appendix B:  Sample Assignment Sheet 

o Appendix C: Current Sector Map 

o Appendix D:  Calls for Service by Sector 

o Appendix E:  Sample SWOT Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 7 

Management Rights and Duty to Bargain 
 

The great majority of the Department’s workforce is represented by a union. Consequently, 

a significant number of the recommendations in the report will require the City to meet a 

bargaining obligation as outline in Chapter 150E of the Massachusetts General Laws.   

 

Some recommendations that relate to existing contract language will need to be bargained 

as part of successor contract negotiations unless the Union agrees to bargain over those 

items outside of successor contract negotiations (e.g. the creation of an impact shift). 

 

Many other recommendations relate to matters that are core management rights and are 

not otherwise restricted by the union contract. These recommendations could be 

implemented after that City provides notice to the impacted union(s) and bargains the 

impact of the change (e.g. changes in the organizational structure and updates to policies 

and procedures.) This type of bargaining, often referred to as impact bargaining, does not 

need to take place as part of the negotiation for a successor contract. 

 

Finally, there are a number of recommendations that are core management rights and do 

not require any bargaining obligation (e.g. the decision to conduct an external property and 

evidence audit or the decision to create a Community Engagement Plan.) That said, it is 

always advisable to keep the union leadership appraised of any major changes in advance 

of implementation. 

 

RSG recommends that the City meet with its Labor Counsel to determine the appropriate 

bargaining obligation, if any, associated with each specific recommendation. 

 

Category One:  Restructure Organization to Promote 

Accountability and Reflect Priorities 

Recommendation 1:  Move Internal Affairs Unit to the Office of the Chief 
 

The Internal Affairs Unit performs the critical function of ensuring accountability and 

overall integrity of the Department. Responsibilities assigned to this Unit include but are 

not limited to: recording and monitoring citizen complaints, conducting comprehensive 

investigations of any alleged employee wrongdoing including any criminal complaints that 

are lodged against all Department employees, and oversight responsibilities regarding any 

disciplinary issues to ensure complete accountability. 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 8 

At the time of our study, this unit is located within the existing Criminal Investigations 

Division and was staffed by a lieutenant. RSG recommends that this unit be relocated to the 

Office of the Chief of Police to ensure a direct line of communication to the Department’s 

CEO. By placing this essential unit directly within the Office of the Chief of Police, the 

organizational structure will reflect and emphasize the fact that the Department places the 

highest priority on addressing issues that adversely impact the integrity, the accountability 

and the reputation of the Department. 

 

Recommendation 2:  Eliminate Executive Officer Position 
 

City Ordinance establishes the position of the Executive Officer for the Revere Police 

Department (Section 2.60.010.) This position has seven areas of primary responsibility, 

which include:  

 

1. Training 

2. Human Resources 

3. Accreditation  

4. Policy & Procedure  

5. Armory & Weapons 

6. Special Operations Unit 

7. Auxiliary Police 

The Executive Officer currently oversees the following major areas of the divisions: 

 

1. Bureau of Administration 

2. Bureau of Support Services 

3. Bureau of Night Operations  

4. Bureau of Day Operations  

5. Criminal Investigation Division (supervises the commander of this division.)   

 

It is not reasonable to believe that one individual can provide the requisite oversight to 

effectively manage all of these organizational components. This organizational structure is 

contrary to the well-established principles of command and control as well as span of 

control.  

 

The current management structure of the Department is too haphazard and assigns an 

unreasonably broad span of control to this one position. The elimination of the Executive 

officer position is the cornerstone to creating empowered Division Commanders who are 

accountable for their respective functional areas of responsibility. This creates a true 

leadership team with aligned values and clearly articulated roles in the Department 

9.g

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 9 

management hierarchy.  Failure to adopt this recommendation leaves the Captains as third 

tier Department managers rather than key members of the senior leadership team. 

 

Recommendation 3:  Select Acting Chief from Captains 
 

City Ordinance (Section 2.60.080) states that in the absence or disability of the police chief, 

the Executive Officer will perform this function. If the City eliminates the position of 

Executive Officer, RSG proposes that the Chief be given the authority to select a captain to 

act in this capacity. The Chief could consistently assign this temporary assignment to one 

specifically designated captain or potentially rotate this temporary assignment among all of 

the captains.  

 

Recommendation 4:  Organize the RPD into Four Major Divisions 
 

The bureau structure that currently exists should be eliminated and, instead, the 

Department should consist of four major divisions, which shall include: 

  

1. The Patrol Operations Division 

2. The Criminal Investigations Division 

3. The Professional Standards Division 

4. The Community Services Division 

 

The Patrol Division and the Criminal Investigations Division already exist in similar form.  

However, this report contains a number of recommendations to modify those 

functions/units. The Professional Standards Division and the Community Service Division 

did not exist when this study began. However, the Department has already made some 

positive changes in these areas since that time. This report contains a number of 

recommendations that will outline the duties and responsibilities of these new divisions. 

 

Recommendation 5:  Amend the Ordinance to allow Four Captains 
 

In order for each of these divisions to have the necessary senior leadership and oversight, 

the RSG recommends that a captain ultimately be assigned to oversee and command each 

division. Each captain would also have the organizational title of Division Commander. 

However, the City Ordinance currently states that the Department may have three captains 

(Section 2.60.010.)  At this time, the Department already has four civil service captains. 

However, one of these captains holds the title of Executive Officer. If the City eliminates the 

position of Executive Officer, as we recommend above, then it should also amend the 

ordinance so that it is clear that there shall be four captains.   

9.g

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 10 

 

RSG does note that it is unusual that the City codifies its staffing numbers for ranking 

officer positions (e.g., Sergeant, Lieutenant, Captain) in a City ordinance.  In most 

municipalities, the staffing of any given Department is clearly an executive function and the 

legislative body has the authority to fund, or not fund, the requested positions.  The City of 

Revere’s decision to codify specific Department staffing levels in a City ordinance does add 

an additional step in the process when the Department needs to either increase or reduce 

existing levels of management in order to best meet and optimize the ever-changing needs 

of the Department. 

 

Recommendation 6:  Modify Patrol Operations Division 
 

RSG recommends that the Bureau of Night Operations and the Bureau of Day Operations be 

merged to create the newly created Patrol Operations Division. This Division will be 

responsible for all field operations and any allied functions including any reserve police 

officers.  

 

Platoon Schedule 

 

As currently exists, each shift should be divided into three regular patrol platoons 

including: 

 

• Day Platoon:  8:00 am - 4:00 pm 

• Night Platoon One: 4:00 pm - 12:00 am 

• Night Platoon Two: 12:00 am – 8:00 am 

 

Patrol officers are scheduled to work for four days and then have two days off. Officers 

assigned to the Day Platoon work that shift on a regular basis. Officers not assigned to the 

Day Platoon alternate on a daily basis between Night Platoon One and Night Platoon Two.  

However, in Recommendation 17 “Adopt Straight Shifts” (below) RSG recommends that 

these officers cease alternating shifts and instead consistently work either the Night 

Platoon One (“First Half Shift”) or Night Platoon Two (“Last Half Shift”) on a regular basis. 

This schedule is often referred as a “Straight Shifts.” 

 

On any given day of the week, two groups shall work together, and the third group shall be 

on their regularly scheduled days off.  

 

Also, in recommendation 16 “Establish Impact Shift” (below), RSG recommends the 

creation of an additional fourth platoon, called the “Impact Shift”.  A description of how the 

9.g

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 11 

Impact Shift would be integrated into the existing schedule is included in Recommendation 

16.   

 

Platoon Staffing 

 

• There shall be a lieutenant assigned to each platoon who shall hold the title of 

Officer in Charge. 

• There shall be three sergeants assigned to each platoon who shall hold the title 

of Patrol Supervisor. 

 

Recommendation 7:  Modify Criminal Investigation Division 
 

The Criminal Investigation Division (CID) is responsible for ensuring the efficient 

management and performance of all criminal investigations where follow-up is necessary, 

major cases and court case management. This division shall consist of the following 

functional units, functions and assignments:  

 

• Major Crimes Unit:  A lieutenant and a sergeant, who shall be assigned to either 

the Day Platoon or Night Platoon One, shall staff this Unit. This Unit will be 

responsible for the following: 

 

o Investigate major crimes including sexual assaults and domestic violence. 

o Identify, recover, process and retain latent fingerprints. 

o Process and retain sketches and photographs and collect and preserve 

physical evidence. 

o Control all property in the custody of the Department with the exclusion 

of drug related evidence (See below.) 

o Administer the Sex Offender Registration and Address Verification Audits 

(Previously assigned to the Records Division.) 

o Administer the Firearms Licensing process (LTC, FID) (Previously 

assigned to the Records Division.) 

 

• Evidence Officer: This position is responsible for controlling all seized or found 

property in the custody of the Department (excluding any drug related evidence) 

including special considerations required for the handling, logging, storage, 

inspection and administration of evidence including conducting random 

sampling audits pursuant to Department policy.  

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 12 

• Drug Control Unit:  A lieutenant and a sergeant, who shall be assigned to either 

the Day Platoon or Night Platoon One, shall supervise this Unit. This Unit will be 

responsible for the following: 

 

o Investigate crimes related to illicit drugs, vice, organized crime and 

intelligence activities.  

o Control, records and processes all drug related evidence and money held 

as evidence during on-going investigations and prosecutions.  

o Serve as liaison with the Drug Enforcement Agency Task Force (The 

liaison role will be performed by a sergeant or detective within the unit 

who has been assigned to the DEA.) 

o Perform random sampling audits of all drug evidence. A designed Drug 

Control Officer will perform the function.  (The Internal Affairs Lieutenant 

shall also conduct unannounced random sampling audits of all drug 

evidence.)  

 

• Gang Unit: Gang-related activity is a nationwide problem that has a propensity 

to operate in urban environments. Gangs can contribute to higher violent crime 

rates, induce community deterioration through negative behaviors such as 

vandalism, graffiti, street/store robberies and drug dealing. Gang activity also 

increases the public’s collective fear of victimization.  Therefore, this unit shall 

be a priority in the organizational structure of the Department. A Sergeant, who 

shall be assigned to either the Day Platoon or Night Platoon One, shall supervise 

this Unit. This Unit will be responsible for the following: 

 

o Conducting surveillance, decoy operations and other covert patrol 

activities in plain clothes.  

o Developing specific expertise and technical skills related to all local gang 

characteristics, behaviors, and gang prevention and suppression 

methods. 

o Sharing criminal intelligence information with neighboring law 

enforcement agencies. 

o Serving as the liaison with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (The 

liaison role will be performed by a detective within the unit who has been 

assigned to the FBI Gang Task Force.) 

 

• Public Information Officer:  The Captain of the CID (or selected designee) shall 

act as the Public Information Officer.  He/she shall be responsible for 

development and implementation of a public relations strategy and 

dissemination of all press releases and official Departmental communications. 

9.g

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 13 

The Chief of Police may also disseminate official communications to media 

platforms as he/she deems appropriate. 

 

 This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Administration. 

 

• Licensing Board Liaison: The Captain in charge of the CID (or selected 

designee) shall act as the liaison to the Revere Licensing Board and shall also 

oversee all operations as they pertain to Compliance Checks for licensed 

establishments, including alcohol and marijuana (to be implemented in 

Massachusetts after 7/1/2018). 

 This function was previously performed by the Office of the Chief and a number 

of different units based on the specific license in question.   

 

Recommendation 8:  Create a Professional Standards Division 

 

The Department should establish a Professional Standards Division (PSD) charged with 

designing, implementing, and ensuring compliance with the Department’s programs, 

policies, rules and regulations. The existence of this type of division is now commonplace in 

law enforcement organizations of similar size and complexity. The PSD will be responsible 

for the following functional units, functions and assignments: 

 

• Accreditation Manager:  A lieutenant in the PSD should be appointed to serve 

as the Accreditation Manager for the Department and shall receive specialized 

accreditation manager training within one year of appointment to this 

assignment. He/she shall ensure that all reports pertaining to accreditation are 

properly submitted in a timely manner. If necessary, a patrol officer or civilian 

staff person should be assigned to assist with this function.  (Recommendation 

33 below speaks further to the topic of accreditation.) 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer. 

 

• Details and Overtime: The PSD will oversee the distribution of overtime and 

paid detail assignments, including ensuring compliance with all Department 

policies and procedures as well as collective bargaining obligations.  

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services. 

 

• Training Function: The PSD will be responsible for coordinating various career 

enhancement programs (training, career development and performance 

9.g

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 14 

evaluation programs) and an officer within the unit will serve as the liaison to 

the Municipal Police Training Committee (MPTC) Police Academy. The PSD shall 

oversee the MPTC certified instructors who are responsible for providing 

training for new and in-service Revere Police Officers. 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer. 

 

• Recruitment, Selection and Promotion Function: The PSD will coordinate the 

recruitment, selection and promotion of personnel. A designated member of this 

Division will serve as the liaison to the Massachusetts Human Resources Division 

(HRD) and the Human Resource Director for the City of Revere.  

 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer. 

 

• Employee Recognition Program:  The PSD will be responsible for the 

Department’s employee recognition program. 

 

This function was previously performed by the Office of the Chief. 

 

• Human Resources Liaison:  The PSD shall ensure that the Department 

complies with Civil Service Law, and the Department’s policies, rules and 

procedures on hiring and assignment, including Equal Employment 

Opportunity/Affirmative Action (EEO/AA), drug and alcohol policies and other 

policies. The PSD shall disseminate the Department’s Sexual Harassment Policy 

on an annual basis. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer. 

 

• Department Property and Equipment Function:  The PSD will oversee all 

Department equipment, including firearms and uniforms. This duty includes 

preparing specifications and purchasing equipment and uniforms. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services. 

 

• Background Investigation Function: The Professional Standards Division will 

be responsible for conducting the candidate screening processes.  The Criminal 

Investigations Division may provide support for background investigations upon 

request.  

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 15 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer (however, this 

was not reflected in the 6/2012 organizational chart.) 

 

• Administrative Services Functions:  The PSD will be responsible for 

overseeing the following functions: 

 

o Payroll  

o Record Management 

o CJIS Management  

o Grant Management 

These functions were previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services and 

the Bureau of Administration (Records Division) as well as the Office of the 

Chief. 

 

• Management Information System Function:  The PSD is responsible for the 

maintenance of the computerized records system, the maintenance of the 

Department website (www.reverepolice.org), Sharepoint, which is the 

Department’s intranet for internal electronic communications (roll call, etc.) and 

other functions directly related to the administration of the RPD. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Administration. 

 

• Crime Reporting and Analysis Unit (CRAU):  The CRAU is responsible for 

processing and distributing crime bulletins, counter terrorism information and 

other intelligence. This CRAU is also responsible for coordinating training on 

internal security and terrorism. The Captain in charge shall designate an officer 

and/or a civilian to act as a liaison to intelligence gathering agencies and 

sources. The CRAU shall be responsible for providing all necessary data to the 

Massachusetts State Police and the FBI for the purpose of Uniform Crime 

Reporting and the National Incident-Based Reporting System.  The CRAU shall 

serves as the liaison to the Department of Criminal Justice Information System. 

 

These functions were previously assigned to the Bureau of Administration. 

 

• The Regional Emergency Communications Department (RECD):  The RECD 

will be under the jurisdiction of the PSD and shall be responsible for the receipt 

and dispatching of all public safety service requests including calls for police, 

fire, emergency medical and/or animal control services for both the City of 

Revere and the Town of Winthrop.   

9.g

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)

http://www.reverepolice.org/


 

Ryan Strategies Group 16 

 

The RECD is responsible for the City’s Public Safety Answering Point and all 

matters relating to the implementation and operation of the “E-911” operation. 

The PSD Captain, or his/her designated lieutenant, shall act as the liaison to the 

RECD.  (The RECD is under the command of a Director and a seven-member 

Board of Directors that includes: the Mayor of Revere, the Town Manager of 

Winthrop, the Revere Police Chief, the Winthrop Police Chief, the Revere Fire 

Chief, the Winthrop Fire Chief and an alternating member from Revere and 

Winthrop. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services and the 

Bureau of Night Operations. 

 

• Building Maintenance / Site Planning Liaison:  The Building 

Maintenance/Site Planning Liaison is responsible for overseeing the 

maintenance, repair, renovation and construction of police Department 

buildings and structures and other mechanical systems and facility equipment.  

In this capacity the liaison may supervise the work of building maintenance 

personnel. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services. 

 

• Special Events Coordinator:  The Special Events Coordinator is responsible for 

serving as the Department’s liaison to organizations that are planning parades, 

road races, fun runs, festivals and other civic celebrations. This includes 

reviewing all permits related to the use of streets, parks and other public spaces.  

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services. 

 

• Customer Service Standards:  The PSD should be responsible for establishing 

and monitoring customer service standards for the entire Department.  These 

standards should address topics such as standard phone greetings, outgoing 

voice messages, and expectations for returning phone calls, as well as standard 

protocols for greeting members of the public who walk in to the station and 

other protocols that directly impact how the public experiences the Department.   

 

This function was not previously assigned to any specific part of the 

organization. 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 17 

• Drug Test Coordinator:  The Captain of the PSD (or his/her designee) will 

coordinate the Department’s random drug testing program.  The Lieutenant for 

Internal Affairs will assist in this process upon request of the Captain of the PSD 

or when directed to do so by the Chief. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services. 

 

• Legal Department Liaison: The Captain in charge of the PSD Captain shall serve 

as the liaison to the City’s Legal Department. He/she will assist with litigation 

concerning the Department. (At the discretion of the Chief, the Internal Affairs 

Lieutenant may assume this role depending on the nature of the litigation.) 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer (however, this 

was not reflected in the 6/12 organizational chart.) 

 

Recommendation 9:  Create a Community Services Division 

As part of this study, RSG conducted a community survey to assess the status of the 

relationship between the Community and the Revere Police Department. RSG used a 

standard set of questions for community surveys that was recommended by the US 

Department of Justice – Office of Community Oriented Policing. This survey showed that 

there is a need for improvement in the following areas: 

 

• Relationship Developed: 70% indicated Needs Improvement 

• Police-Community Communication: 80% indicated Needs Improvement 

• Community Input: 75% indicated Needs Improvement 

• Police-Community Collaboration: 75% indicated Needs Improvement 

• Community Perception believing that the members of Revere Police Department 

engage in the Department-wide philosophy of Community Policing: 75% 

indicated Needs Improvement.  

 

These survey results demonstrate the need to create a Community Services Division (CSD) 

that is primarily responsible for building new relationships and strengthening existing 

relationships between the police and the community. The CSD will seek to accomplish this 

goal through ongoing dialogue, collaboration, and partnerships.   

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 18 

The CSD will be responsible for the following functional units, functions and assignments: 

 

• Community Resources Officer:  This is a new sworn position that is described 

in Recommendation 10 below. 

 

• Community Engagement Coordinator:  This is a new non-sworn position 

which is described in Recommendation 11 below. 

 

• School Resource Officers:  There are three School Resource Officers (SRO) 

assigned to various schools in the City of Revere. These officers shall be assigned 

to an administrative work schedule with Day Platoon work hours. The Chief on 

an as needed basis may adjust these hours. A lieutenant in the CSD shall 

supervise these officers.  

The function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Day Operations – Platoon 

3.  

 

• Traffic Unit: This unit is responsible for enforcing motor vehicle laws for 

commercial and passenger vehicles including imposing established fines on 

violators. In addition, this unit is responsible for the hackney license and taxi 

inspection function.   

 

The function was previously assigned to a Traffic Division.   

 

(RSG recommends a new schedule for the Traffic Union, which is outline in 

Recommendation 20.) 

 

• Fleet Maintenance: One of the officers in the Traffic Unit will be responsible for 

working with the assigned civilian employees or vendors to oversee the 

maintenance of marked and unmarked vehicles. The Sergeant in the Traffic Unit 

will be responsible for making this designation. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Administration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 19 

• Accident Reconstruction Unit: This Unit is responsible for providing accident 

reconstruction services for serious motor vehicle accidents. This Unit also assists 

with accident/crime scene processing and serves as the point of contact with the 

Massachusetts State Police Reconstruction Unit and the District Attorney’s Office 

in cases involving motor vehicle homicide. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Traffic Division. 

 

• Court Prosecutor/Liaison: A superior officer (preferably with the rank of 

lieutenant) shall serve as the Court Prosecutor/Liaison to the Chelsea District 

Court (Serving Chelsea, Revere and the Massachusetts State Police). He/she shall 

be responsible signing all criminal complaints, representing the Department and 

its officers at all traffic hearing, maintaining all court attendance records, posting 

all court attendance lists assisting the Suffolk County District Attorney’s Office, 

transporting all police reports and relevant documentation to Court, and 

informing Department personnel on the disposition of all closed cases. 

 

The function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Day Operations 

 

• Animal Control Officer: This existing civilian position is responsible for 

handling all animal complaints. The Lieutenant assigned to the Community 

Services Division shall supervise this individual. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Day Operations – Platoon 

3. 

 

• Retired Part-time Officers / Auxiliary Police Officers: Officers that are have 

retired from the Department are eligible to work paid details pursuant to the 

rules established in the Detail and Overtime Policy.  These officers shall be 

supervised by the lieutenant assigned to the CSD who shall ensure compliance 

with all required in-service training and qualifications and strict adherence to 

G.L. Chapter 32 Section 91. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Executive Officer. 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 20 

Recommendation 10:  Create Sworn Position of Community Resource Officer 
 

The Community Resource Officer (CRO) shall acts as a liaison with existing community 

groups - including neighborhood watch groups and community-based organizations - and 

shall enhance the Department’s ability to provide a uniform presence at meetings and 

events.  Working in partnership with the Community Engagement Coordinator (below), the 

CRO will be responsible for performing outreach activities to residents, the business 

community, local community organizations, the clergy, the schools, local government 

services and other interested community stakeholders. These partnerships are designed to 

assist in forming and maintaining formidable police-community relationships aimed at 

collaboration, problem-solving and building new partnerships. As a sworn member of the 

Department, the CRO will be in a position to be a strong advocate for community 

engagement within the Department. 

 

Recommendation 11:  Create Non-Sworn Position of Community Engagement 

Coordinator 
 

The Community Engagement Officer (CEC) shall have specific expertise in developing 

community-oriented action plans and group facilitation and process. Working in 

partnership with the Community Resource Officer, the CEC will be responsible for the 

conducting regular outreach to all of the different constituencies in the City to ensure there 

is an opportunity for two-way communication. This CEC will seek to strengthen existing 

relationships while, at the same time, seek to establish new partnerships with groups in the 

City who have not traditionally had strong open and ongoing dialogue with the 

Department. The CEC will develop, implement and assess a range of different programs 

that serve to facilitate and sustain this ongoing communication.  

 

The CEC will develop a community outreach and engagement action plan that involves a 

wide range of diverse Revere community groups, including adversely affected 

neighborhoods (those with higher levels of calls for service), as well as key community 

stakeholders and community-based leaders.   

 

Recommendation 12:  Amend Selection Process for the Chief 
 

RSG recommends that the Mayor and City Council file a home rule petition to amend M.G.L. 

Chapter 102 of the Acts of 2001 in order to allow the City to consider external candidates 

for the position of Police Chief.   

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 21 

We believe the current selection process does not provide the City’s leadership with access 

to a sufficient number of qualified applicants for this critical position. We have no doubt 

that the City has had many highly qualified internal Chiefs in the past and will certainly 

have many highly qualified internal Chiefs in the future.  In fact, we have had firsthand 

experiences working with extremely professional and talented members of the RPD. 

However, there is no reason for Revere, or any law enforcement agency, to categorically 

deny itself the option of choosing from the widest array of candidates as possible. Our 

rationale for this recommendation is outlined below. 

 

Tenure of Recent Chiefs 

 

Over the past sixteen years, the Department has had three police chiefs.  The City’s most 

recent effort to select a permanent chief was unsuccessful and the Department is currently 

under the leadership of an acting chief. 

 

• Captain James Guido is currently serving as the Acting Chief of Police. Mayor 

Brian Arrigo appointed Guido to this position in July of 2017. 

• Acting Chief Guido replaced Chief Joseph Cafarelli. Former Mayor Daniel Rizzo 

appointed Cafarelli to the position in 2012. Mayor Arrigo opted not to reappoint  

Cafarelli. 

• Chief Cafarelli replaced Chief Terence Reardon who served in the position for ten 

years. Former Mayor Thomas Ambrosino appointed Reardon to the position. 

 

Requirements for Appointment 

 

The requirements for appointment to the position of Chief of Police in the City of Revere 

are codified under the General Laws of the Commonwealth under the Acts of 2001, Chapter 

102 titled which reads as follows: 

 

“Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by 

the authority of the same, as follows:  

SECTION 1. The position of police chief of the city of Revere shall be exempt from chapter 

31 [Civil Service] of the General Laws.  

SECTION 2. The police chief of the city of Revere shall be appointed by the mayor for a term 

of office of 5 years subject to the confirmation of the city council.  

SECTION 3. Appointments to the position of police chief of the city of Revere shall be 

limited to officers of the Revere police Department who have attained the rank of lieutenant 

9.g

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)

https://malegislature.gov/legis/laws/mgl/gl-31-toc.htm
https://malegislature.gov/legis/laws/mgl/gl-31-toc.htm


 

Ryan Strategies Group 22 

and who have served in that rank for 5 years or more, and to officers of the Department 

who have attained the rank of captain.  

SECTION 4. This act shall take effect upon its passage. Approved October 11, 2001.  

 

Restriction on the Applicant Pool 

 

The requirements of this statute result in a very small number of individuals being eligible 

to apply for the position of Chief.  The applicant pool is then further reduced because only a 

certain percentage of the eligible employees will be interested in the position. This 

aggressive narrowing of the applicant pool takes place before the Mayor has even began 

the process of determining who among the applicants have the knowledge, skills, abilities, 

education and experience to succeed as police chief. 

 

Certainly, there are a number of good reasons why community leaders and the Department 

prefer an internal candidate. An internal candidate understands local and organizational 

culture and may, at least initially, have an easier transition period than an external 

candidate. In addition, the possibility of eventually becoming the Chief can serve as an 

important motivational factor for existing officers within the Department.   

 

In the alternative, there are times when there simply is not a candidate with the right set of 

skills for the Department’s needs at that time. There are times when an organization needs 

to undergo fundamental change and the ability to access someone from outside the 

organization may be critical. There are times when the culture of a community and/or 

Department become so politicized or polarized that it is necessary to be able to consider a 

candidate who is not overly involved with local politics or enmeshed in long standing 

conflicts. 

 

There is no magic formula or industry standard that pre-determines whether an internal or 

an external candidate is best positioned to lead a law enforcement agency. This will always 

depend on the current strengths and weaknesses of the existing organization, need for 

culture change, the short and long-term goals or the organization, presence of effective 

succession training/planning, and the specific skills and abilities of the applicant pool.  

 

Like almost all other organizations, it is likely that at different times the City’s needs will be 

best be served by an internal candidate and, at other times, best be served an external 

candidate. The applicant pool that exists at that specific moment in time will always further 

impact this variable. 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 23 

However, as it currently stands, the City of Revere does not merely have a preference for an 

internal candidate, it statutorily prohibits the City from even considering an external 

candidate. The RSG does not oppose a general preference for a local candidate.  However, 

we strongly oppose a categorical prohibition against the consideration of external 

candidates.  It is directly contrary to the interest of the City to not have access to as broad a 

selection of candidates as possible, even if the final decision in any given hiring process is 

to select an internal candidate. 

 

Recommendation 13:  Establish New Selection Process and Criteria 
 

After repealing M.G.L, Chapter 102 of the Acts of 2001, the Mayor and the City Council 

should adopt a local ordinance that outlines the minimum and preferred qualifications for 

the position of Police Chief. 

   

These minimum qualifications could potentially include: 

 

• Bachelor’s Degree in Criminal Justice. 

• Must have held the rank of Lieutenant or Captain within the Revere Police 

Department or the rank of Captain, Deputy Chief or Chief in a position of equal or 

greater responsibility in a municipal or federal law enforcement agency. 

• Must have direct experience supervising unionized law enforcement officers. 

• Must have a minimum of ten years of experience in law enforcement with a 

minimum of five years in a managerial position. 

These preferred qualifications could potentially include: 

 

• Master’s Degree in Criminal Justice or similar field, Master of Public Administration 

or JD. 

• Completion of the FBI National Academy (Quantico) 

• Completion of PERF Senior Management Institute or similar professional certificate 

program 

• Prior experience in a civil service position and experience working with a work 

forced governed by civil service law. 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 24 

Category Two:  Restructure Staffing, Shifts and Sectors to 

Align with Goals 
 

 

Recommendation 14: Reduce Lieutenants and Sergeants by Attrition 
 

Based on our interviews with City and Department officials, there is a broad perception 

that the Department, which has a self-reported complement of 89 sworn officers, is 

understaffed.  In order to assess the accuracy of this perception, RSG has reviewed Revere’s 

numbers in comparison to other communities Massachusetts Major City Chiefs Survey. 

 

Massachusetts Major City Chiefs 

 

The Massachusetts Major City Police Chiefs (MMCC) is a professional association of the 

chiefs of police Departments that have seventy-five or more sworn officers and/or service a 

population of 40,000 or more. The Revere Police Department has been a member of the 

MMMC since it originated in 2003.  Each year the MMCC conducts a Comparison Data 

Survey to benchmark key metrics such as number of sworn personnel, ranking officers, 

budgets, population density, police per capita, salaries, benefits, and the number of 

superior officers as a percentage of the total Department. 

 

For the purpose of establishing a closer point of comparison to Revere, RSG has excluded 

those communities with more than 100,000 residents (Boston, Cambridge, Lowell, 

Springfield, Worcester and the MBTA Police.)  This leaves the following thirty-three 

communities in the survey group: 

 

1. Arlington 

2. Attleboro 

3. Beverly 

4. Braintree 

5. Brockton 

6. Brookline 

7. Chelsea 

8. Chicopee 

9. Everett 

10. Fall River 

11. Fitchburg 

12. Framingham 

13. Haverhill 

14. Holyoke 

15. Lawrence 

16. Lynn 

17. Malden 

18. Medford 

19. Methuen 

20. New Bedford 

21. Newton 

22. Peabody 

23. Pittsfield 

24. Plymouth 

25. Quincy 

26. Revere 

27. Salem 

28. Somerville 

29. Taunton 

30. Waltham 

31. W. Springfield 

32. Weymouth 

33. Woburn

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 25 

Per Capita Ratio of Officers/Population 

 

The 2017 MMCC survey shows that the average per capita ratio of officer/population is 

2.02 (police officers per thousand residents).  The Revere Police Department has an 

officer/population of 1.99. By comparison, some nearby communities that are included in 

the survey have the following ratio: 

 

• Chelsea = 2.45 

• Everett = 2.71 

• Revere = 1.99 

• Lynn = 1.96 

• Malden = 1.77 

• Medford = 1.87 

• Somerville = 1.69 

This data shows that while Revere is on average on this important metric, it is not 

significantly lower than other neighboring communities.   

 

Percentage of Supervisor to Patrol 

 

While there is no doubt that the Department would benefit from a higher 

officer/population ratio (if utilized effectively) RSG believes that the key metric that has 

constricted the Department and its valuable resources is the supervisor to patrol officer 

ratio. 

 

Another comparison point in the survey is the percentage of sworn workforce that are 

supervisors (ranking officers) compared to the percentage that are patrol officers.  The 

2017 MMCC survey shows that the average percentage is 24.4%. The Revere Police 

Department has supervisor to patrol percentage of about 33%.   

 

By comparison, the nearby communities that are included in the survey have the following 

supervisor to patrol ratio: 

 

• Chelsea = 26.1% 

• Everett = 23.9% 

• Lynn = 23.7% 

• Malden = 26.7% 

• Medford = 29.0% 

• Somerville = 26.6% 

9.g

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 26 

 (This data is based on the MMCC survey that was issued in June of 2017, as amended. The 

data initially used was self-reported by the Revere Police Department at the time of the 

MMCC survey(s) and had to be amended during the study. Any changes in staffing levels 

that have taken place in any of the communities since that time are not reflected in these 

numbers.) 

 

Staffing Levels in City Ordinance  

 

The number of ranking officers is included in a City Ordinance (Section 2.6.010), which 

states that the Department shall be comprised of the following: 

 

• One Chief of Police (currently filed by Acting Chief) 

• Three Captains (currently 4 Captains including Executive Officer) 

• Twelve Lieutenants 

• Seventeen Sergeants  

• Such a number of patrol officer as may be appointed by the Mayor and provided for 

by the City Council 

The organizational chart that the Department provided showed the Department is 

currently staffed at the level required by the ordinance with the exception of the existence 

of fourth captain, who serves as the Executive Officer. 

 

Redirect Resources to Patrol Position 

 

It is not necessarily a negative to have a high supervisor/patrol officer percentage.  

However, the Revere Police Department’s ratio can fairly be described as unusually high.  

This is a problem because limited resources mean that the Department is always making 

choices in terms of what they prioritize.  Right now, the Department is prioritizing 

supervisory positions and, therefore, unintentionally choosing not to prioritize maximizing 

the number of officers performing front line patrol functions.   

 

In order to reprioritize the patrol function, RSG recommends that the City ordinance 

decrease the number of lieutenants from twelve to ten (or lower) and the number of 

sergeants from seventeen to fifteen (or lower).  RSG recommends that this be accomplished 

over time through attrition. 

 

Recommendation 15: Conduct Annual Review of Specialized Assignments 
 

Many law enforcement agencies have officers who have a special assignment (e.g. examples 

of common special assignment that exist in Revere and in other agencies). The benefits of a 

9.g

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 27 

special assignment are two-fold. First, by dedicating specific officer(s) to a specific issue, 

the Department increases the likelihood that the given topic (e.g. domestic violence) gets 

the requisite attention that it needs. Second, some challenges (e.g. computer crimes) 

require a special skill. For that reason, it makes sense to designate specific Department 

personnel to that challenge and invest in their training and knowledge.   

However, an excessive number of special assignments, or outdated assignments, can be 

detrimental to an agency. Officers who have special assignments are not regularly 

otherwise available for general front-line patrol operations, which is the role that has the 

most direct engagement with the public. In addition, an organization that has an excessive 

number of special assignments can develop an overly complicated organizational structure 

that can decrease clear lines of responsibility and accountability. 

 

As part of a general goal or redirecting resources to frontline patrol, RSG believes the 

Department needs to be more cautious about the creation of special assignments. We are 

not recommending the elimination of a specific special assignment as part of this report. 

However, we do recommend that each Division Commander should be required to submit 

an annual report to the Chief with the following information: 

 

• A complete list of that division’s special assignments 

• The date the special assignment was created 

• A description of the special assignment 

• A description of the initial problem or condition that lead to the creation of the 

assignment 

• The justification for continuing or eliminating that specific assignment 

 

By conducting this type of annual evaluation of the special assignments, the Department 

can help ensure that its personnel and organizational structure remain aligned with its 

present day needs and is not based on legacy decisions that were made to respond to issues 

that have become less critical. 

  

Recommendation 16:  Create Impact Shift Pilot Program 
 

In order to better align resources with peak periods of call activity, RSG recommends the 

City negotiate with the unions to create an Impact Shift. This shift would overlap Night 

Platoon One and Night Platoon Two.  In addition to aligning staffing resources with peak 

hours, it would also provide greater continuity of coverage during the midnight shift 

change period. 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 28 

 

Pilot Program 

 

RSG recommends that the Department introduce the Impact Shift as a one-year pilot 

program for two reasons. First, it will presumably be easier to secure the agreement of the 

Unions if they have the assurance that they will have a guaranteed opportunity to 

reconsider their agreement in a one-year period.  Second, after one year, all parties will 

have some first-hand experience with the Impact Shift which they can use to make a more 

informed decision as to whether the Impact Shift has helped advance the Department’s 

overall mission.   

 

If the parties do not mutually agree to continue the Impact Shift, then the patrol officers 

and sergeants assigned to the Impact Shift shall be reassigned to the remaining three shifts 

based on seniority during the annual shift bidding process. 

 

Impact Shift Logistics 

 

This proposed shift would overlap the hours of Night Platoon One (4:00 pm – Midnight) 

and Night Platoon Two (Midnight – 8:00 am). The shift would begin at 5:00 pm and end at 

3:30 am (10.5 hours). There would be two different groups of officers assigned to the 

Impact Shift (Alpha and Bravo.) The two groups would alternate, with each group working 

four days in a row followed by four days in a row off. Each group would consist of four to 

six officers including a sergeant. The minimum number of patrol officers assigned to each 

Impact Shift (Alpha and Bravo) should be 3 and maximum should be 5.  

 

In order to comply with existing collective bargaining language in both the Patrol Officers’ 

and Supervisors’ union contracts regarding the total days off allotted based on a “Four and 

Two” Work Schedule, the Department and the Unions will need to agree to a number of 

adjustments in order to ensure that officers assigned to the Impact Shift are working the 

same number of hours as other officers during the 12-month assignment period. 

 

In a 28-day cycle, officers on the impact shift will have worked 168 hours. The Fair Labor 

Standards Act exemption (207(k)) allows for 171 total hours in a 28-day cycle before an 

employer is obligated to pay overtime. Therefore, no overtime would automatically result 

due to the creation of this shift. 

 

Since vacation and sick days are accrued based on an eight-hour day, officers on the impact 

shift will have their have their days converted to hours to ensure that they continue to earn 

vacation and sick at the same hourly rate of accumulation as other officers.   

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 29 

Officers will be assigned to the Impact Shift in the same manner that the Department uses 

to assign officers to the Day and Night Platoons. However, the assignment of staff to the 

Impact Shift will be voluntary. If fewer than six patrol officers and two sergeants bid for 

this shift, then the shift will not be implemented during the pilot phase.   

 

Recommendation 17:  Replace Split Shifts with Straight Shifts 
 

At this time, night shift officers work the following schedule: 

 

o Day One: 4:00 pm to 12:00 am 

o Day Two:   12:00 am to 8:00 am 

o Day Three: 4:00 pm to 12:00 am 

o Day Four: 12:00 am to 8:00 am 

o Day Five: Off 

o Day Six:  Off 

o Day Seven: Repeat Cycle 

 

This type of schedule, where officers alternate between Night Platoon One (4:00 pm 

to 12:00 am) and Night Platoon Two (12:00 am to 8:00 am), is referred to as a “split” 

or “rotating” shift. In comparison, officers assigned to the Day Platoon work from 8:00 

am to 4:00 pm every day that they work.  This type of consistent shift is called a 

“straight” shift. 

 

RSG recommends that the Department adopt straight shifts, as opposed to split shifts, 

for night officers. RSG recognizes the Department would have to satisfy its bargaining 

obligation in order to implement this change. 

 

Under a straight shift structure, one group of night officers would work from 4:00 pm 

to 12:00 am every shift that they work, and the other group of night officers would 

work from 12:00 am to 8:00 am every shift that they work. 

 

The Police Foundation is a nationally recognized non-profit organization whose 

mission is to advance policing through innovation and science.  In their 2011 study 

entitled, “The Shift Length Experiment” they found that officers who work straight 

shifts are more likely to be able to successfully regulate their sleeping habits and 

establish healthier eating habits.  These factors increase morale and productivity and 

decrease fatigue.  In addition, this consistent schedule makes it easier for the 

Department to schedule court appearances, in-service and specialized training 

9.g

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 30 

assignments and other Departmental requirements while also making it easier for 

officers to schedule personal commitments outside of work.   

 

 

Recommendation 18:  Increase Foot Patrols  
 

At this time, the Department utilizes foot patrols in each of the seven sectors on an 

intermittent basis.  RSG recommends that the Department increase the use of foot patrols 

so that a foot patrol is active in a sector whenever possible.  When staffing levels limit the 

Department’s ability to have a designated foot patrol, then officers who are assigned to 

sector cars should, when possible, leave their cars for twenty or thirty minutes and have an 

on-foot presence in highly congested neighborhoods and business districts in their 

assigned sector. These types of foot patrol are referred to as “Directed Foot Patrols” or 

“IMPACT Patrols” (Improved Methods of Patrolling an Area based on Crime Trends) or 

“Park, Walk & Talk Patrols”.  When structured and supervised effectively, this initiative will 

further develop trusting relationships in the community and enhance police officer 

accountability.  

 

Recommendation 19:  Change Schedule for Canine Unit 
 

RSG recommends that the Department continue to have two canine units. These units 

should support the Department’s mission of providing effective and efficient public safety 

operations. The canine unit should integrate its field activities with the regular patrol force, 

reducing substantially the danger inherent to patrol officers in the performance of their 

duties. The canine unit should regularly conduct training during roll call, issue canine 

training bulletins and develop and adopt appropriate policies. 

 

Officers who were selected as canine handlers have been responsible for this function and 

RSG was not able to determine the clear line of supervisory authority for this function. 

 

RSG recommends that the two canine handlers be assigned to the two Impact Shifts (Alpha 

and Bravo.) While the hours for the Impact Shift will be 5:00 pm to 3:30 am, the hours for 

the canine handlers should be 5:00 pm to 2:00 am.  This schedule will compensate the 

canine handlers for 1.5 hours of at-home care for the canine per shift.  This provides an 

additional half hour for at-home care than is currently compensated at this time. 

 

If the Department does not create the Impact Shift, then one canine handler should be 

assigned to Night Platoon One and the other should be assigned to Night Platoon Two.  

These canine handlers should have their schedule adjusted so that they receive 1.5 hours 

pay for at-home care duties. 

9.g

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 31 

Recommendation 20:  Change Schedule for Traffic Unit  
 

The Traffic Division (which RSG recommends become the Traffic Unit within the 

Community Service Division) is currently staffed by one sergeant and four traffic officers. 

At this time, the sergeant and all four officers work the 8:00 am to 4:00 pm shift.  RSG 

recommends that two of the officers work the 4:00 pm to 12:00 am shift in order to 

provide coverage at night. At this time, the sergeant works a 5 days on/2 days off schedule 

and the traffic officers work a 4 days on/2 days off schedule. RSG recommends that the 

sergeant and the officers work the same schedule in order to ensure the necessary level of 

supervision and direct communication. 

 

Recommendation 21:  Reduce the Number of Sectors from Seven to Five 
 

RSG recommends that the Department combine Sectors Three and Seven as well as Sectors 

Five and Six. These sectors are the lower call volume sectors in the City. This will reduce 

the total number of sectors from seven to five.  (Appendix A is a map of the current sectors 

within the City.) By doing so, the Department will have greater staffing flexibility which it 

can use to be more creative with staffing strategies.  This can assist with two specific issues. 

 

Accountable Officer for Every Sector 

 

There are many times when the Department does not have enough officers on duty to be 

able to assign an officer to each sector. As is always the case, officers will still respond to 

calls for service anywhere in the City. However, when there is no specific officer assigned to 

a sector, there is no specific officer responsible for engaging in proactive activities to 

respond to known problems or issues in that sector.  By decreasing the number of sectors, 

the Department will increase its ability to ensure that an officer is assigned to each sector. 

 

 

Additional Resources for Busiest Sectors and High Incident/Hotspot Areas 

 

By reducing the number of sectors from seven to five, the Department will increase the 

number of times when all sectors are assigned and, therefore, increase the number of times 

when additional officers will be available to supplement coverage in the busiest sectors.  

This could be done by assigning an additional patrol car, by assigning a foot patrol, or by 

employing another creative strategy to respond to a need that has been identified by the 

Crime Analysis and Reporting Unit.  (Appendix B demonstrates that Sectors 101 and 103 

and the busiest sectors at this time.) 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 32 

Recommendation 22:  Discontinue Special Operations Unit and Use Regional 

Resources 
 

Current Status 

 

The Department has its own Special Operations Unit (SOU) in order to respond to 

exceptional situations that require increased firepower or specialized weapons and tactics, 

The SOU is staffed by three sergeants and eight patrol officers. The Department indicates 

that the unit averages 16 hours of training per month, which costs the Department about 

$20,000 annually in overtime costs. The SOU is loosely affiliated with the Everett and 

Winthrop Police Departments and the Suffolk County Sherriff’s Office. The collective group 

is referred to at the North Metro SWAT Team. 

 

RSG recommends that the Department conduct a cost/benefit analysis to determine 

whether the Department should continue to have its own SOU or whether it should secure 

this service through existing regional resources and service agreements.   

 

SOU/SWAT services are high-risk and high liability activities that require a serious 

commitment of time and of resources. The Department’s SOU only meets the minimum 

training requirements (two days per month) and does not adequately cross-train with 

other municipal, state, and federal SWAT teams. When RSG asked for SOU training records, 

we were told that duty had been performed by the Executive Officer who has since retired. 

The Department did provide RSG with a number of unsigned After-Action Training Reports 

that recorded the date and topic of the trainings but did not include specifics such as the 

number of training hours or the time the training began or ended.  

 

In addition, the National Tactical Officers’ Association (NTOA) has not reviewed the Revere 

SOU, which is a standard best-practice for any SWAT operations. 

 

 

Alternatives Models 

 

Thankfully, the need for SOU services in the Revere, like most U.S. cities of comparable size 

and population, is limited. The Revere SOU responds to six to eight calls per year. 

 

The Revere Police Department is already a member of the nine community Level 1 Urban 

Area Security Initiative (UASI.) UASI member communities include Boston, Brookline, 

Cambridge, Chelsea, Everett, Quincy, Revere, Somerville and Winthrop.) UASI receives 

significant funds from the Department of Homeland Security funds, which pass through the 

Massachusetts Executive Office of Public Safety and Security (EOPSS).  These funds are 

9.g

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 33 

used to train member agency personnel and purchase needed equipment as it pertains to 

enhancing the safety and security of those designated nine communities. As part of the 

UASI partnership, member agencies can also share equipment and personnel including the 

use of the Boston Police Department’s highly trained SWAT Team – at no cost to the 

municipality.   

 

In addition to resources available as a member of UASI, the City should explore joining a 

Law Enforcement Councils, such as the North-East Massachusetts Law Enforcement 

Council (NEMLEC), as a way to secure highly trained cost-effective SWAT/SOU and 

resources. NEMLEC currently has more than fifty municipalities from Northeast 

Massachusetts as members.  

 

If the Department decided to continue to have its own SOU, it needs to have an independent 

review of the SOU by the of National Tactical Officer’s Association. An external law 

enforcement contractor of proper credentials in SWAT/SOU services should oversee the 

implementation of the recommendations in the NTOA report.   

 

If the Department decided to continue to have it owns SOU, the supervision of this Unit 

should be the responsibility of the Captain of the Criminal Investigation Division. This 

responsibility was previously assigned to the Executive Officer. 

 

 

Recommendation 23:  Transfer Civilian Crossing Guards to School System 
 

The process of scheduling civilian crossing guards, and particularly the process for finding 

alternative coverage in response to last-minute notice absences, is very time consuming 

and not the best use of limited police resources. Although there appears to be no consistent 

practice among other cities and town as to whether the police Department or the school 

Department should oversee this function, RSG recommends that the responsibility for the 

crossing guards function be transferred to the Revere Public School Department.  

 

In the interim, RSG recommends that the Crossing Guards report to the Lieutenant in 

charge of the Day Platoon. [This function is currently under the direction and command of 

the Traffic Division] 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 34 

Category Three:  Invest in Workforce Development 
 

Recommendation 24:  Update and Refocus Training Plan 
 

The Department needs to update and refocus its training plan to focus on building 

community trust and enhancing police legitimacy through procedural justice, transparency, 

and accountability. Instead, the overwhelming majority of training has been tactical (e.g. 

tactical patrol officer, active shooter, tactical medicine, etc.) While tactical training is 

important, when a Department becomes disproportionately focused on tactical training, it 

can result in officers being too quick to employ their tactical skills rather than defusing an 

incident with de-escalation techniques or other strategies. 

 

RSG reviewed Department training records from January 1, 2015 and August 14, 2017.  

With the exception of training that was mandated by the Massachusetts Municipal Police 

Training Committee (MPTC), the Department does not appear to have provided officers 

with training in contemporary policing strategies (e.g. conflict resolution, de-escalation, use 

of force) or community policing.   

 

The Department provided RSG with a brief document that outlines the current training 

plan for the next few years. The plan focused on tactical training, including: mandatory in-

service training; defensive tactics; active shooter; Taser; CPR, firearms, tactical patrol 

officer and tactical medicine. 

 

The Department needs to align its training programs with the community policing 

philosophy and implement new training and education programs over the next two to 

three-years. This should include training programs that are offered by the United States 

Department of Justice, Community Oriented Policing (COPS) Office. Examples of COPS 

training includes: 

  

• Applied Evidence-Based Policing Practices: data-driven policing 

• Community Policing Defined 

• Ethical Decision Making: Policing with Principled Insight 

• New Perspectives on Community Policing 

• Tactical Community Policing for Homeland Security 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 35 

In addition to the trainings offered by the USDOJ, the Department should offer the following 

addition types of training (are these specific types of training or are they general topics for 

training):  

 

• 21st Century policing strategies  

• Career development, succession planning/experience 

• Leadership development and leadership core competencies 

• De-escalation  

• Communication with persons with mental illness 

• Crisis intervention training (CIT) 

• Trauma informed policing 

• Procedural justice 

• Alternatives to use of force  

• Fair and impartial policing 

• Implicit bias  

• Police legitimacy  

• Building trusting partnerships in the community 

 

Recommendation 25:  Establish a Leadership Development Steering 

Committee  
 

An internal Command Climate Survey conducted by RSG identified “Leading Performance 

and Change” as a primary area that needs improvement within the organization. For 

example, one officer responded to the survey by writing: 

 

Goals and objectives don't exist and if something comes along that slightly resembles a 

goal or objective it's communicated as "Sorry, this isn't coming from me, it's coming 

from him. Just do it so I don't have to hear about it." 

 

 

Another respondent wrote: 

 

The climate is to answer your calls. There is no incentive to do extra and doing extra is 

actually frowned upon.   

 

RSG recommends that the Department establish a Leadership Development Steering 

Committee (LDSC) that is made up of representatives from all different ranks within the 

sworn workforce as well as representatives from the non-sworn workforce. The LDSC 

should utilize the services of an external facilitator to ensure that there is a structure for 

9.g

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 36 

the meetings and to ensure that all the participants are treated as equal peers, regardless of 

rank or position in the formal organization. 

 

The goal of the LDSC will be as follows: 

 

• Write a policy statement that communicates the Department’s policy on 

leadership responsibilities and development. 

• Review the Climate Survey and identify issues or concerns that could be 

addressed, or improved, through the development of leadership skills. 

• Identify the core leadership competencies necessary for each rank/assignment. 

• Identify the resources that are necessary to attain/develop the identified 

competencies.  For example, the Southern Police Institute offers a Chief Officer 

Training program. 

• Further develop the concept of “Mentorship Meetings” that are described in 

Recommendation 26 (below).  

• Publish a leadership framework document for the Department that identifies the 

competencies that are necessary for an officer to be able to succeed at every 

level of the organization. 

• Identify measurable outcomes that will serve as indicators that the leadership 

skills in the Department have improved. 

• Conduct a follow up Climate Survey to determine if progress has been made as a 

result of the efforts to build leadership skills within the Department.  

 

One survey respondent summed it up as follows,  

 

Have a strategic plan with short and long-term goals. Get input from everyone then 

communicate what they are so the expectations are out there and hold people 

accountable. Set high standards and adhere to them. Be fair in everything we do. 

Seriously consider and commit to changing the way we do things move toward 

Community Oriented Policing. It will take hard work, commitment and a couple of 

years. The philosophy is common sense. For those that don't agree they simply don't 

understand it. We need training, and Department wide commitment from the Revere 

MA Police Department- Command Climate Survey 2017 63 top down. It should 

permeate every aspect of the PD such as culture, training and policies. To be successful 

this philosophy needs to become a reality in practice. Allow members of the 

Department to be heard and give input, and they will better except decisions made. We 

need to improve morale. Supervisors need to acknowledge when good work is done 

and they need model good behavior.  

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 37 

Recommendation 26:  Conduct Mentorship/Goal Setting Meetings 
 

As part of the Climate Survey, one officer wrote: 

 

In my time with this Department I have only had one supervisor sit me down and ask 

what my goals were within the Department and how I planned to achieve them. That 

only occurred once. This should be a regular thing between supervisors and 

subordinates. They should be documented and regularly reviewed to check progress 

and make adjustments as necessary.  

 

RSG recommends that the Department conduct individual structured career counseling 

meetings on a six-month basis, and in no case less than an annual basis. The purpose of 

these meetings will be to provide feedback and mentorship and to identify career goals. 

The specific structure for the mentorship/goal setting meetings should be developed by the 

LDSC. 

 

Recommendation 27:  Implement Line Staff Uniform and Appearance 

Inspections 
 

The police uniform identifies the officer and makes him/her readily accessible to the 

public. For this reason, it is critical that officers maintain a neat and clean appearance.  This 

is an important component of gaining the respect and trust of the public. It is also a vital 

part of maintaining discipline and uniformity in a municipal police organization. 

 

The Officer in Charge should perform regular inspections of officers’ uniforms and 

appearance to ensure compliance with Department policy. In addition, the Captain of the 

Professional Standards Division should conduct periodic unannounced inspections of 

officers’ uniforms and appearance to ensure that the Officer in Charge is enforcing these 

standards. 

 

 RSG is not aware of any such inspections taking place at this time. 

 

Recommendation 28:  Return to Traditional Municipal Police Uniform 
 

The Revere police officer’s uniform has evolved from the traditional municipal police style 

that is most common in other Departments to one that has a more tactical appearance with 

“battle dress uniform” (BDU) pants and baseball caps.  This tactical appearance makes the 

officers appear more “militarized” and less approachable.  

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 38 

To reinforce the perception that the police officer is first and foremost a community 

guardian, and not part of a military presence, the Department should return to the use of 

the traditional police uniforms and hats and officers should wear visible name places.  In 

addition, during winter months long-sleeve shirts and ties should be worn. (Officers may be 

allowed to wear ball caps or winter hats when working a traffic detail.) This change will 

help enhance police legitimacy and accountability.  

 

Recommendation 29:  Establish an Early Warning System for Officers at Risk 
 

Many law enforcement agencies have an “Early Warning System” to identify officers at risk 

of engaging in police misconduct. The goal of this system is to provide additional training to 

these officers and prevent future misconduct. RSG recommends that the Professional 

Standards Division implement this type of system in the Department.  

 

An Early Warning System uses collective patterns of poor performance and misconduct to 

identify officers who are likely to engage in potential future serious misconduct. Data that 

is reviewed as part of this computerized system may include, but not be limited to:  

 

• Civilian and internal complaints of misconduct and rules violations 

• Incidents of frequent/questionable use of force  

• Preventable police vehicle crashes 

• Named in civil litigation 

• Abuses of sick time and tardiness 

• Work performance failures 

• Pattern of unwitnessed line of duty injuries 

• Discretionary arrests (i.e. disorderly conduct, A&B on a police officer, 

resisting arrest, etc.) 

• Incidents of workplace hostility/violence 

• Being the subject of a criminal investigation 

• Being the subject of a restraining order 

• Reports of prisoner problems and complaints 

• Traffic and pedestrian stop data that could indicate disparate treatment 

based on protected class. 

 

The Professional Standards Division should employ the use of a modern off-the-shelf 

software system (IA Trak, IA Pro, LEA Data, etc.) to efficiently collect and analyze selected 

data points on a real-time basis.  

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 39 

Category Four:  Take Proactive Steps to Engage the 

Community 
 

At stated in the “Major Theme of Findings” section at the beginning of this report, the 

Department needs to be far more proactive in engaging with the community.  However, we 

do note that during his short tenure, Acting Chief Guido has implemented a Community 

Service Division and assigned a lieutenant to this Division to oversee various outreach 

programs and initiatives including, the sub-station, the Citizen Police Academy, the Police 

Activities League, the School Resources Officers, the National Night Out program, the Media 

and Public Information Officers and the Youth Academy.   

 

Our recommendations in this section build upon the steps that Acting Chief Guido has 

taken with the goal of formally integrating community engagement into the Department’s 

practices, culture and overall Departmental philosophy.  

 

 

Recommendation 30:  Create a Community Engagement Plan 
 

The Chief should appoint a Community Engagement Planning Committee which will be 

responsible for identifying community engagement strategies and developing a three-year 

plan to implement those strategies. This committee should be comprised of the Chief, the 

Captain of the Community Services Division, the Community Engagement Coordinator 

(CEC) and other sworn and non-sworn Department personnel.   

 

As part of this process, the Committee should facilitate formal police-community focus 

group meetings to further develop the Community Engagement Plan, and review the plan 

with the Community Action Teams (outlined in Recommendation 31), to ensure that it is 

responsive to the needs to the community. 

 

As with any plan, the Department’s Community Engagement Plan should have clearly 

defined goals and objectives and an effective evaluation component to objectively gauge 

the success of the plan. 

 

Examples of items that could potentially be included in the plan are: 

• Strategies to support existing Neighborhood Watch Groups and strategies to create 

new Neighborhood Watch Groups and a Business Watch Group. 

• Align shared strategies with community-based organizations and existing initiatives  

9.g

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 40 

• A strategy to develop/expand youth initiatives, which may include: identifying 

youth leaders and providing them with positive experiences (e.g. providing tours of 

the RPD, working out with a cop, lunch with a cop); expanding the existing RPD 

Police Activities League (PAL) and identify mentoring opportunities. 

• The expansion of the Citizen Police Academy (currently offered once annually). 

• The creation of a comprehensive so-called “Community Power” program that 

includes a mini Citizen Police Academy that results in new NWGs. 

• Further promotion of the Annual National Night Out program. 

• A structure for identifying and applying for community policing grants. 

• The adoption of “Roll Call Mini Trainings” on topics such as trauma informed care, 

stigma reduction, personal and professional development and cultural awareness. 

• The creation of a Prostitution Task Force to assist woman in need of services 

trapped in this dangerous street lifestyle. 

• The creation of a 21st Century versions of DARE and Gang Resistance Education and 

Training (GREAT). 

• Rewards and recognition initiatives for officers who are outstanding “engagers”. 

• Cultural exchanges between officers and community members from different 

cultures. 

• The development of a marketing campaign to promote engagement activities that 

would include the Department’s website, social media, local media, community 

cable television, YouTube and other social media platforms/forums. 

 

 

Recommendation 31:  Establish/Formalize Community Partnerships 
 

As part of the process of developing the Community Engagement Plan, the Department 

should develop transparent ongoing relationships with all community partners – both 

formal and informal. 

 

Certainly, many officers in the Department already have positive relationships with 

individuals in the community. They have no doubt used those relationships to advance the 

mission of public safety. However, in a Department that adheres to a community policing 

philosophy, those relationships are leveraged and further expanded upon as part of a 

broader community-wide strategy to address the conditions that give rise to public safety 

problems. 

 

RSG recommends that the Department create a list of existing neighborhood associations, 

other civic groups, and formal or informal representatives of different communities of 

interest.  This list should include representatives of communities that may not be fully 

9.g

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 41 

enfranchised and may likely have historical reservations about working with law 

enforcement in general.   

 

If the Department creates and maintains this specific list, they can use it for the purpose of 

creating the Community Engagement Plan as well as a tool to track when, where, why and 

how often they are proactively contacting these representatives. 

 

Recommendation 32:  Create Community Action Teams 
 

RSG recommends that the Department establish a Community Action Team (CAT) for each 

sector in the City. 

 

The purpose of the CAT is to have a structured format to directly engage community 

members in the process of identifying issues that are adversely impacting the quality of life 

in that sector of the community.  The CAT establishes priorities in terms of determining 

which issues most need to be addressed, and brainstorming ways to address those issues.  

 

The CATs should meet on a monthly basis at Police Headquarters as well as other 

designated locations throughout the City. CAT meetings should be conducted in a focus 

group fashion with a police representative, preferably a Sector Officer and/or the 

Community Resource Officer, acting as the facilitator of the group. The minutes from the 

meetings should be transcribed by an appointed secretary (a member of the public) and 

disseminated to CAT members and the Chief of Police, who will in turn, distribute the 

information to the relevant Division Commanders so that appropriate follow up action can 

be taken. 

 

The Department should take the following steps to inform the public about these meetings: 

 

• Post notices on www.ReverePolice.org  and Department social media accounts 

• Place a notice in the local press 

• Post a Public Service Announcement on the city-operated cable television 

station. 

 

At the outset, a distinction should be drawn between recommending policing priorities as 

opposed to selecting particular strategies to be deployed by the police Department.  The 

police Department shall defer to the community on recommending particular priorities 

while the police, in consultation with the community, will set particular strategies to be 

utilized.  In this respect, the presumption is that within the bounds of the law and the 

resources available, the police will be guided by the preferences of the community to the 

extent possible. 

9.g

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)

http://www.reverepolice.org/


 

Ryan Strategies Group 42 

The Department shall have an obligation to be guided by the agenda that is recommended 

by the CATs to the extent that the recommendations are reasonable and attainable.  If there 

is any significant divergence from the agreed upon priorities set by the CATs, the Police 

Chief - when requested to do so – will provide ample justification for any significant 

deviation that is contrary to the priorities outlined by the CATs. 

 

Understandably, incorporating community input into policing and achieving real inclusion, 

as opposed to mere community legitimization of police Department decisions, can certainly 

be challenging. However, if the City is to sustain long-term success in reducing crime, this 

type of partnership involving ongoing communication is essential and will ultimately be the 

key.  

 

Category Five:  Update Policies and Procedures and Other 

Recommendations 
 

Recommendation 33:  Attain Certification and then Accreditation 
 

The Massachusetts Police Accreditation Commission (MPAC), offers two distinct 

certification programs known Certification and Accreditation. These programs establish 

best practice standards for Massachusetts police Departments. MPAC standards are based 

upon national standards adopted by the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement 

Agencies, Inc. (CALEA) located in Fairfax, Virginia.  These standards reflect what are known 

as the best professional practices in each area of police management, administration, 

operations and support services.   

 

Self-Assessment Phase 

 

The Certification/Accreditation Process begins with a thorough self-examination to 

determine the agency’s initial level of compliance.  This phase is known as Self-Assessment 

Phase (or internal evaluation).  Unfortunately, the RPD has been in this initial self-

assessment phase for approximately six to eight years.   

 

This prolonged self-assessment period has had tangible drawbacks.  For example, in some 

areas the Department is relying on draft model policies dated 2010 and 2011 that have not 

been adopted or implemented. The Department’s rationale for not moving forward with 

updated policies and procedures, or completing the self-assessment, is not entirely clear.  

 

The assessments process to attain Certification takes place over two consecutive days and 

is conducted by two or three certified assessors who determine whether the agency is in 

9.g

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 43 

compliance with 159 mandatory standards.  The assessments process for Accreditation is 

conducted in three consecutive days by three certified assessors.  These assessors 

determine whether the agency is in compliance with over 300 standards.   

 

Utilizing the same survey group that is described in Recommendation 14, the status of 

accreditation for comparable communities is as follows: 

 

• Accredited: Arlington, Brookline, Chelsea, Fall River, Framingham, Peabody, 

Salem, Woburn and Waltham 

 

• Certified: Somerville and Weymouth 

 

• Self-Assessment: Beverly, Everett, Fitchburg, Haverhill, Lynn, Malden, Medford, 

Methuen, Plymouth, New Bedford and Revere 

 

• Not in Process:  Attleboro, Braintree, Brockton, Chicopee, Holyoke, Lawrence, 

Newton, Pittsfield, Quincy, Taunton, and West Springfield 

 

Although participation in this Certification/Accreditation Process is strictly voluntary, 

attaining these standards promotes the professionalism of the agency and the community’s 

trust and confidence in the Department. This trust component is essential for the 

Department moving forward. 

In addition, Certification and Accreditation are an effective risk management tool in terms 

of addressing areas of potential supervisory and management liability, which are areas that 

have plagued the Department with some high-profile incidents that occurred within the 

agency and received widespread media coverage. 

 

Listed below are some of the more important areas of supervisory liability that can be 

mitigate through the certification and accreditation process: 

9.g

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 44 

• Negligent Appointment/Hiring - Failure to safeguard against employing 

someone clearly unfit for the position of police officer, failure to adequately screen 

individuals or hiring someone known to be unfit.  

   

• Negligent Retention - Failure to discipline or terminate an employee found 

unsuitable for police employment.  Often this concerns failure to take action 

against ‘problem’ officers. 

 

• Negligent Assignment - Failure to remove an employee from a ‘sensitive’ 

position for which he is known to be unfit or to assign him to such a position 

knowing him to be unfit.   

 

• Negligent Entrustment - Failure to control or supervise an employee’s use or 

supervision of equipment or facilities to which the employee has access in his job 

assignment.   

 

• Negligent Training - Failure to adequately train in the skills and expertise 

expected of a police officer. (One of the more consistent sources of litigation 

against police supervisors.) 

 

• Negligent Supervision - Failure to supervise subordinates.  A supervisor can be 

held liable if he/she fails to perform adequately as an administrator and the 

failure results in violations of Section 1983.  

 

• Failure to Direct - Failure to adequately inform an employee of the specific 

requirements as well as limitations of his job position. (An administrator without, 

or with inadequate, written policies and procedural guidelines is especially 

vulnerable to this type of liability.)  

 

 

 

Finally, in terms of the potential benefits of pursuing Certification and Accreditation, RSG 

believes that the Department’s active participation in the process will provide a baseline 

for the Department to judge its performance, and a basis to correct its deficiencies before 

they become a public problem.   

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 45 

Recommendation 34: Update/Develop New Policies and Procedures 
 

The Department’s policy manual, including of many of the agency’s policies and 

procedures, does not meet national or regional standards, does not comply with best 

practices, and is poorly structured.  There are numerous instances of policies that may or 

may not have been implemented and communicated to the workforce.  There are also 

numerous policies in the manual that remain in draft form. 

 

The Department needs to update or develop new policies. Fortunately, through the process 

of preparing to become certified and accredited (above) the Department will receive clear 

direction on the policies that it needs to have in place.  The Department will also have 

access to model policies that are available from professional associations, and policies 

already adopted by other comparable agencies. 

 

The Professional Standards Division should be responsible for developing and maintaining 

policies, and for disseminating and conducting necessary training regarding those policies. 

Contemporary law enforcement agencies are governed by an increasingly wide range of 

policies.  Listed below are examples of those policies. 

 

All Hazards Plan 

Arrest Procedures 

Authority & Responsibility 

Automatic External Defibrillator 

Auxiliary Personnel 

Biased Based Profiling 

Body Armor Program  

Bomb Emergencies 

Calls for Service - Customer Service 

Canine Team 

Child Requiring Assistance 

CJIS, Leaps, and NCIC Data Entry 

Communications 

Computer & Data Security 

Consular Notification 

Crime Analysis Function 

Criminal Intelligence 

Death Notification 

Death Notification for Employees 

Departmental Goals and Objectives 

Departmental Vehicles 

Discipline and Accountability 

Domestic Abuse 

Elder Abuse 

Employee Identification Cards 

Employee Recognition Program 

Evidence & Property Control 

Evidence Collection & Preservation 

Eyewitness Identification 

Firearms Evidence Guidelines 

Firearms Range 

Firearms Safety Device 

Fiscal Management 

Follow-Up Investigations 

Harassment Prevention 

High Risk Domestic Violence 

Holding Facility 

Hostage/Barricaded Suspects 

Identity Crimes 

Incapacitated Persons 

Incident Reporting 

Interacting with Transgender Individuals 

9.g

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 46 

Internal Affairs 

Interview/Interrogation Room 

Inventory Searches of Motor Vehicles 

Juvenile Services 

Labor Disputes 

Leadership Development 

Media Policy 

Missing Persons 

Nasal Naloxone Program 

Notifications to Command Staff 

Oath of Office/Code of Ethics 

Pandemic Planning & Response 

Park, Lock & Walk Program 

Police Training Officer Program 

Portable Breath Tester 

Preliminary Investigations 

Prisoner Transportation 

Records Management 

Responding Procedures 

Response to Bank Alarms 

Roll Call 

Rules & Regulations Governing Employee 

Conduct 

Search & Seizure 

Seat Belt Policy 

Selection of Personnel 

Serving People with Behavioral Health 

Disorders 

Sexual Harassment 

Social Media Policy 

SRO Program 

Stop & Frisk 

Strip Search & Body Cavity Searches 

Take Home Vehicles 

Terrorism Intelligence Communication 

Traffic Safety 

Training & Career Development 

Uniforms & Appearance 

Unlawful Harassment 

Use of Confidential Informants 

Use of Force 

Use of Mobile Data Terminal System 

Vehicle Pursuit 

Vice, Drugs, and Organized Crime 

Victim Witness Assistance 

Written Directive System 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 47 

Recommendation 35:  Revise Procedures for Property/Evidence Audits and 

Security 
 

Regularly Scheduled Internal Audits 

 

The National Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies (CALEA) 

publishes a manual of standards and best practices for internal property and evidence 

audits. CALEA recommends that internal property and evidence audits be conducted on a 

regularly basis. An evidence audit pertains to items that may be used for evidentiary 

purposes in a criminal prosecution. A property audit pertains to items that have come into 

the possession of the Department but are not be held for evidentiary purposes. 

 

The Department was unable to provide any documentation from any prior property audit.  

Consequently, RSG believes it is likely that the Department does not perform property 

audits, or, has at least not conducted a property audit at any time in the recent past. 

 

The Department did conduct limited evidence audits, which it referred to as “Fire arms, 

Drugs and Monies Audit Report” in January of 2009 and November of 2013. However, these 

audits had at least four notable short-comings. 

 

First, contrary to CALEA standards, these audits were conducted by the same officers who 

were routinely responsible for the evidence management function. Consequently, these 

officers were effectively auditing themselves, defeating one of the primary reasons to 

conduct the audit – which is a check and balance system with neutral and detached 

oversight. CALEA standards and best practices recommends that an internal property or 

evidence audit be conducting by a superior officer who is not the officer who is routinely 

responsible for the property and evidence management function. 

 

Second, any audit should produce an exhaustive list of what evidence is present as well as 

any evidence that is missing. This exhaustive list serves as the baseline for subsequent 

audits. The Department’s 2009 and 2013 audits did not produce a list of the evidentiary 

items in the Department’s possession.  Instead, it just identified those items that were 

missing. 

 

Third, the 2013 audit only included items that were in the safe within the Property Room 

as opposed to all of the property in both the safe and the room as well as property stored 

anywhere else within the confines of the Department or stored outside the Department at a 

satellite location or in the possession of another agency (e.g., MSP Crime Lab, MSP Drug 

Lab, FBI Lab, etc.) 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 48 

Fourth, although the 2009 did identify 32 drug/narcotic discrepancies and 16 firearms 

discrepancies, the Department did not report these findings to any law enforcement 

agencies, such as the Suffolk County District Attorney’s Office, and/or the Mayor’s Office. 

This type of reporting and notification is standard best practice in response to this type of 

audit finding. 

 

 

Unannounced Internal Audits 

 

CALEA standards also recommend that, in addition to conducting regularly scheduled 

internal audits, a law enforcement agency should conduct unannounced audits on a 

random basis.  The purpose of this type of audit is to ensure that if someone is engaged in 

any type of malfeasance, misconduct or neglect of duty they do not have the benefit of 

knowing exactly when an audit will take place.  There is no record of the Department 

conducting any unannounced random audits. 

 

External Independent Audit 

 

In addition to conducting regularly scheduled and unannounced random internal audits, it 

is the best practice for Departments to periodically retain the services of a qualified 

external firm to conduct an audit of all the property and evidence. It does not appear that 

the Department has ever engaged an independent firm for this specific purpose. 

 

Install Video Cameras in Property and Evidence Rooms 

 

The Department should immediately install high quality video cameras in the property and 

evidence rooms and ensure that the footage has at least a one-year retention period. Using 

this type of readily available equipment to supplement existing security protocols in this 

area is standard practice for all law enforcement agencies that handle and store evidence 

and property. 

 

Recommendation Summary  

 

RSG strongly recommends that the Department immediately implement these three (3) 

types of property and evidence audits and install video cameras in the Property and 

Evidence Rooms.  Failure to act in these areas could seriously compromise the 

Department’s relationship with other partner law enforcement agencies, the judiciary and 

the community in general. There are many examples, including several recent cases in 

Massachusetts, where a police Department’s failure to adhere to these established best 

practices resulted in criminal cases being seriously compromised, victims losing their 

9.g

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 49 

opportunity to achieve justice, and the involved law enforcement agency having their 

reputation tarnished which resulted in a loss of significant credibility. 

 

Recommendation 36:  UASI Liaison - FEMA/MEMA Liaison 
 

The Chief of Police shall serve as the Joint Point of Contact (JPOC) for the City of Revere to 

the Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI). The CSD Captain should serve as the Alternate 

JPOC.  The Mayor of Revere as the Chief Executive Officer for the City shall appoint the JPOC 

and the Alternate JPOC by sending a written communication to the Boston Office of 

Emergency Management (OEM). The CSD Captain shall act as the FEMA and MEMA Liaison. 

 

This function was previously assigned to the Bureau of Support Services. 

 

Recommendation 37:  Conduct Annual SWOT Analysis  
 

RSG recommends that the Department conduct a “SWOT” analysis at the beginning of each 

year in conjunction with the publishing of the Department’s Annual Report. “SWOT” stands 

for Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats. Strengths and Weaknesses refer to 

factors that are internal to an organization while Opportunities and Threats refer to factors 

that are external to an organization. A SWOT Analysis is sometimes called Internal-External 

Analysis and the SWOT Matrix is sometimes called an IE Matrix. 

 

This analysis will assist the Department in developing specific strategies, initiatives and 

programs aimed at coping with these factors and can help the Department develop and 

update a five-year strategic plan. 

 

Appendix C is an example of a SWOT diagram that was constructed by RSG based on our 

review of the organization.  The Department would need to include many additional factors 

when conducting its own SWOT analysis. Examples of factors that will likely impact the 

Department, and most other law enforcement agencies, include: 

 

• Limited financial and human resources 

• Increasing complexity of multi-jurisdictional crimes 

• Multi-lingual population growth creating communications challenge 

• Increased gang activity 

• Increased illegal drug activity and associated crime 

• Increased juvenile crime 

• Increased training requirements 

• Increased number of motor vehicle traveling through the City 

• Foreign and domestic terrorism threats 

9.g

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 50 

Appendices 

 
Appendix A – Sector Map 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 51 

 

 

Appendix B – Calls for Service by Zone 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



 

Ryan Strategies Group 52 

Appendix C – Example SWOT Analysis  

 
 

 

 

9.g

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ya
n

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

R
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
  (

22
-3

41
 :

 P
ar

ti
al

 R
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 C
O

 2
2-

24
6)



10.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
er

e 
H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
C

o
ve

r 
L

et
te

r 
12

-1
2-

22
  (

22
-3

42
 :

 R
H

S
 P

ro
je

ct
 U

p
d

at
e 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

02
2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

SCHOOL BUILDING COMMITTEE  & SCHOOL COMMITTEE BUDGET UPDATE - DECEMBER 8, 2022

CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 12, 2022 

10.b

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 - RHS FEASIBILITY STUDY COMPLETION SCHEDULE RECAP

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

30 31 1 2 3 4 5 27 28 29 30 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 26 27 28 1 2 3 4

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12 13 41 15 16 17 18

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

27 28 29 30 1 2 3 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31 1 2 3 4 26 27 28 1 2 3 4 26 27 28 29 30 31 1

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

January February March

20232022

November December

MSBA Schematic 
Submission Deadline

MSBA SD Notification 
Deadline (must 
include budget)

12/8 SBC+SC Meeting
- Budget

11/17 SBC+SC Meeting
Process/Schedule 

Overview

Estimating 
(Documents)

Estimating 
(Reconcile)

12/15 SBC+SC 
Vote to Submit SD

12/12 City Council
Meeting - Budget 3/1 MSBA Board of 

Directors Approval

MSBA Issues Project Scope 
and Budget Agreement 

(+/- 2 weeks)

TBD SBC+SC Meeting
Approve Project Scope and 

Budget Agreement

TBD City Council Meeting
Approve Project Scope & 

Budget Agreement
BOND AUTHORIZATION

January / February
MSBA Schematic Design Review &

Reimbursement Coordination

SBC Meeting SBC Meeting

Estimating 
(Team)

Site
Access

11/28 City 
Council

Meeting -
Design/

Schedule 
Update

10.b

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN ESTIMATE RECONCILIATION

10.b

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE
Preferred Schematic Report Construction Estimates PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 339,496,976$      N/A 317,936,771$      21,560,205$        

Cost Per Square Foot 803$                      752$                      

Schematic Design Construction Estimates - Un-reconciled PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 435,727,555$      455,801,463$      470,353,592$      34,626,037$        

Cost Per Square Foot 1,004$                  1,050$                  1,084$                  

Dollar Value Over Schematic 96,230,579$       116,304,487$     152,416,821$     

Percent Over Schematic 28% 34% 48%

Schematic Design Construction Estimates - Reconciled w/ Value Mgmt. PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 416,993,562$      420,477,516$      TBD 3,483,954$          

Cost Per Square Foot 961$                      969$                      -

Dollar Value Over Schematic 77,496,586$       80,980,540$       -

Percent Over Schematic 23% 24% -

Total Project Budget Comparison PM&C/PSR Consigli/SD

Total Construction Cost 339,496,976$      420,477,516$      

Total Soft Costs (A&E, OPM, Tech, FF&E, Contingencies) 44,838,216$        79,498,549$        

Total Project Budget 384,335,192$      499,976,065$      

Potential MSBA Grant 162,647,779$      161,321,256$      

Potential Total Cost to Revere 221,687,413$      338,654,809$      

Projected Effective Reimbursement Rate 42.3% 32.3%

The blue boxes represent the 

budget at the conclusion of the 

Preferred Schematic Phase.

The green boxes represent the 

current budget at the conclusion 

of Schematic Design.

PSR SD

10.b

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE – VALUE MANAGEMENT
Preferred Schematic Report Construction Estimates PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 339,496,976$      N/A 317,936,771$      21,560,205$        

Cost Per Square Foot 803$                      752$                      

Schematic Design Construction Estimates - Un-reconciled PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 435,727,555$      455,801,463$      470,353,592$      34,626,037$        

Cost Per Square Foot 1,004$                  1,050$                  1,084$                  

Dollar Value Over Schematic 96,230,579$       116,304,487$     152,416,821$     

Percent Over Schematic 28% 34% 48%

Schematic Design Construction Estimates - Reconciled w/ Value Mgmt. PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 416,993,562$      420,477,516$      TBD 3,483,954$          

Cost Per Square Foot 961$                      969$                      -

Dollar Value Over Schematic 77,496,586$       80,980,540$       -

Percent Over Schematic 23% 24% -

Total Project Budget Comparison PM&C/PSR Consigli/SD

Total Construction Cost 339,496,976$      420,477,516$      

Total Soft Costs (A&E, OPM, Tech, FF&E, Contingencies) 44,838,216$        79,498,549$        

Total Project Budget 384,335,192$      499,976,065$      

Potential MSBA Grant 162,647,779$      161,321,256$      

Potential Total Cost to Revere 221,687,413$      338,654,809$      

Projected Effective Reimbursement Rate 42.3% 32.3%

How did the initial 

estimate numbers……

PSR SD

Become these 

numbers?

10.b

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE – VALUE MANAGEMENT

10.b

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE – VALUE MANAGEMENT

10.b

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE – VALUE MANAGEMENT

10.b

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE – VALUE MANAGEMENT

These Value Management cost reductions have been incorporated into the Schematic Design scope 

and budget.

10.b

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE – VALUE MANAGEMENT

These Value Management cost reductions have not been incorporated into the Schematic Design 

scope and budget.

10.b

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)



PERKINS EASTMAN     REVERE HIGH SCHOOL

5 – SCHEMATIC DESIGN BUDGET UPDATE
Preferred Schematic Report Construction Estimates PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 339,496,976$      N/A 317,936,771$      21,560,205$        

Cost Per Square Foot 803$                      752$                      

Schematic Design Construction Estimates - Un-reconciled PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 435,727,555$      455,801,463$      470,353,592$      34,626,037$        

Cost Per Square Foot 1,004$                  1,050$                  1,084$                  

Dollar Value Over Schematic 96,230,579$       116,304,487$     152,416,821$     

Percent Over Schematic 28% 34% 48%

Schematic Design Construction Estimates - Reconciled w/ Value Mgmt. PM&C Consigli AM Fogarty Hi-Lo Delta

Total Construction Cost 416,993,562$      420,477,516$      TBD 3,483,954$          

Cost Per Square Foot 961$                      969$                      -

Dollar Value Over Schematic 77,496,586$       80,980,540$       -

Percent Over Schematic 23% 24% -

Total Project Budget Comparison PM&C/PSR Consigli/SD

Total Construction Cost 339,496,976$      420,477,516$      

Total Soft Costs (A&E, OPM, Tech, FF&E, Contingencies) 44,838,216$        79,498,549$        

Total Project Budget 384,335,192$      499,976,065$      

Potential MSBA Grant 162,647,779$      161,321,256$      

Potential Total Cost to Revere 221,687,413$      338,654,809$      

Projected Effective Reimbursement Rate 42.3% 32.3%

The blue boxes represent the 

budget at the conclusion of the 

Preferred Schematic Phase.

The green boxes represent the 

current budget at the conclusion 

of Schematic Design.

PSR SD

10.b

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
2-

12
-1

2 
R

H
S

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l B
u

d
g

et
 U

p
d

at
e 

 (
22

-3
42

 :
 R

H
S

 P
ro

je
ct

 U
p

d
at

e 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

2)

Brian Dakin
Text Box
Duplicate slide for Q&A



18.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

et
o

M
es

sa
g

eO
p

en
M

ee
ti

n
g

L
aw

12
12

20
22

  (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)



18.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

et
o

M
es

sa
g

eO
p

en
M

ee
ti

n
g

L
aw

12
12

20
22

  (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)



18.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

et
o

M
es

sa
g

eO
p

en
M

ee
ti

n
g

L
aw

12
12

20
22

  (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)



18.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

et
o

M
es

sa
g

eO
p

en
M

ee
ti

n
g

L
aw

12
12

20
22

  (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)



18.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

et
o

M
es

sa
g

eO
p

en
M

ee
ti

n
g

L
aw

12
12

20
22

  (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)



18.a

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

et
o

M
es

sa
g

eO
p

en
M

ee
ti

n
g

L
aw

12
12

20
22

  (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)



ACTS, 1 9 6 5 . — C H A P S . 402, 403, 404. 217 

Chap. 402. AN ACT PROVIDING THAT MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AND OF ALL OTHER BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS IN THE CITY 
OF REVERE BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC WITH THE PUBLIC 
HAVING AN OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD. 

Be it enacted, etc., as follows: 

SECTION 1. Except in the cases of executive sessions authorized by 
section twenty-three A of chapter thirty-nine of the General Laws, all 
meetings of the city council of the city of Revere and of other boards or 
commissions in said city shall be open to the press and to the public, 
and the rules of the city council and of such other boards and commis
sions in said city shall provide that citizens and employees of the city 
shall have a reasonable opportunity to be heard at any such meeting in 
regard to any matter considered thereat. 

SECTION 2. This act shall take effect upon its acceptance by the city 
of Revere. Approved May 3, 1965. 

Chap. 403. AN ACT PROVIDING THAT CERTAIN MINORS SHALL BE COM
PETENT TO CONTRACT FOR MOTOR VEHICLE LIABILITY 
INSURANCE. 

Be it enacted, etc., as follows: 

Chapter 175 of the General Laws is hereby amended by inserting 
after section 113J the following section: — 

Section 113K. Any minor sixteen years of age or over shall be deemed 
competent to contract for a motor vehicle liability policy or bond, both 
as defined in section thirty-four A of chapter ninety, or for a policy of 
motor vehicle liability insurance issued pursuant to the requirements 
of section one hundred and thirteen H, to the same extent and to the 
same effect as though he had attained the age of twenty-one years. 

Approved May 3, 1965. 

Chap. 404. A N ACT AUTHORIZING SCHOOL COMMITTEES TO DESIGNATE 
THE LOCATIONS OF, HIGHWAY SAFETY STATIONS FOR CHIL
DREN AWAITING A SCHOOL BUS. 

Be it enacted, etc., as follows: 

Chapter 71 of the General Laws is hereby amended by inserting after 
section 71 the following section: — 

Section 71 A. A school committee may, subject, however, to all other 
provisions of law, designate the locations for the erection of highway 
safety stations for children awaiting a school bus; provided, that such 
locations have been approved by the school superintendent or, as his 
designee, the school transportation officer. A school committee may 
order the discontinuance of the use of any such station by the children 
if it is not constructed of durable material with a floor of concrete raised 
above ground level, or is not kept clean, well painted, free of snow, and 
suitably maintained at all times. Approved May 3, 1965. 

18.b

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

96
5a

ct
s0

40
2 

(1
) 

 (
22

-3
24

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 -
 R

ep
ea

lin
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
40

2 
o

f 
th

e 
A

ct
s 

o
f 

19
65

)


	Agenda Packet
	Salute to the Flag
	1. Roll Call
	2. Minutes of Dec 5, 2022 6:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of Dec 5, 2022 6:00 PM


	Public Hearings
	3. 22-335 : Special Permit C-22-10, 297 Lee Burbank Highway
	a. PH.C2210.297LeeBurbankHighway

	4. 22-336 : Special Permit, C-22-11, 163 Shirley Avenue
	a. PH.C2211.163ShirleyAvenue

	5. 22-337 : National Grid & Verizon to install two jointly poles on Fernwood Ave.
	a. Councilorder22-5379 Fernwood Ave two poles NationalGridVerizon

	6. 22-338 : National Grid to install underground conduits Fernwood Ave.
	a. Councilorder22-5380NationalGridUndergroundConduits

	7. 22-339 : National Grid & Verizon install one jointly owned pole Squire Rd
	a. Councilorder 22-5381National GridVerizonjointpole275SquireRd.

	8. 22-340 : NationalGrid & Verizon to install two jointly poles on Walnut St
	a. Councilorder22-5382NationalGridVerizonjointpolesWalnut St.


	Communications
	9. 22-341 : Partial Response to CO 22-246
	a. Memo to Council C.O. 22-246 - Partial Response 12.07.2022
	b. Ordinance 2.60 - Police Department (12.06.2022)
	c. Chapter 102 of the Acts of 2001 - Police Chief
	d. PoliceChiefAssessmentReportContract07202017
	e. ArrigoLetterCouncil-Aug2017
	f. Collins-Final Revere HR Report
	g. Ryan Strategies RPD Review

	10. 22-342 : RHS Project Update December 2022
	a. Revere High School Project Update Cover Letter 12-12-22
	b. 2022-12-12 RHS City Council Budget Update


	Motions
	11. 22-343 : Certificates of Appreciation
	12. 22-344 : Update on Decorative Street Lamps on Broadway
	13. 22-345 : Certificate of Appreciation - National Cheer Competition
	14. 22-346 : Staff for the Revere Society for Cultural and Historic Preservation
	15. 22-347 : Certificate of Commendation - Arthur W. Foshey, WWII Vet

	Late Motions
	16. 22-348 : Rule of Order - Public Participation Guidelines for City Council
	17. 22-349 : Council Order 22-287, Status Meeting RE Quality Inn

	Late Communication
	18. 22-324 : Special Legislation - Repealing Chapter 402 of the Acts of 1965
	a. VetoMessageOpenMeetingLaw12122022
	b. 1965acts0402 (1)



	Appendix
	2 · Minutes of Dec 5, 2022 6:00 PM
	3.a · PH.C2210.297LeeBurbankHighway
	4.a · PH.C2211.163ShirleyAvenue
	5.a · Councilorder22-5379 Fernwood Ave two poles NationalGridVerizon
	6.a · Councilorder22-5380NationalGridUndergroundConduits
	7.a · Councilorder 22-5381National GridVerizonjointpole275SquireRd.
	8.a · Councilorder22-5382NationalGridVerizonjointpolesWalnut St.
	9.a · Memo to Council C.O. 22-246 - Partial Response 12.07.2022
	9.b · Ordinance 2.60 - Police Department (12.06.2022)
	9.c · Chapter 102 of the Acts of 2001 - Police Chief
	9.d · PoliceChiefAssessmentReportContract07202017
	9.e · ArrigoLetterCouncil-Aug2017
	9.f · Collins-Final Revere HR Report
	9.g · Ryan Strategies RPD Review
	10.a · Revere High School Project Update Cover Letter 12-12-22
	10.b · 2022-12-12 RHS City Council Budget Update
	18.a · VetoMessageOpenMeetingLaw12122022
	18.b · 1965acts0402 (1)


